
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Mark Ammel, Mayor 
Karen Moore, Mayor Pro Tem 

Ronald J. Beauchamp, Council Member 
Tyler DuBord, Council Member  

Todd Flath, Council Member 

 
CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

June 15, 2023 
 

James R. McNeil, City Manager 
Phil DeMay, City Clerk 

Laura J. Genovich, City Attorney 

 
City Council Chambers located at: City Hall – 410 Ludington Street – Room C101 – Escanaba, MI 49829 

The Council has adopted a policy to use a Consent Agenda, when appropriate. All items with an asterisk (*) are considered routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion 
of these items unless a Council Member or citizen so requests, in which event, the item will be removed from the General Order of Business and considered in its normal sequence on the Agenda. 
 

Regular Meeting 
Thursday, June 15, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. 

CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL 
INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
APPROVAL/CORRECTION(S) TO MINUTES –  Regular Meeting – May 18, 2023 
 Special Meeting – May 25, 2023 

     Special Meeting – June 5, 2023 
APPROVAL/ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION(S) 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT(S) 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
1. Public Hearing – Ordinance No. 1281 - Appropriations Ordinance Amendment – Controller. 

Explanation:  A public hearing will be conducted on an amendment to the current Appropriations Ordinance for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. An amendment is needed to balance out over and under expenditures within various 
departmental budgets for the 2022-23 fiscal year. This action is mandated by State law and adjusts budget accounts 
to help ensure that no individual line items are overrun. 
 

2. Public Hearing – Resolution 23-15 – CDBG/RLF Funding for LeverEdge Chiropractic PLLC – HR Director/Treasurer. 
Explanation: Administration recommends approval of a loan of $35,000 of CDBG/RLF program funds to LeverEdge 
Chiropractic PLLC, to purchase equipment and provide working capital. This will result in the hiring of one (1) new 
employee, 51% of whom have been previously classified as low to moderate income persons. No individuals will be 
displaced as a result of the proposed activities. Administration is recommending Council approval. 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
NEW BUSINESS  
 
1. Approval – Resolution 23-13 – To Withdraw from Great Lakes Utilities – Electric. 

Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council approval of the resolution to withdraw membership from Great 
Lakes Utilities. 
 

2. Approval – Annual Linemen Safety Training – Electric. 
Explanation: Administration is requesting City  Council  approval to sign an agreement with MEUW for Annual Linemen 
Safety Training. 
 

3. Approval – Budget Request – Dock Number Signage – Marina. 
Explanation: Escanaba Marina is seeking City Council approval of new dock number signage for pier #1 and #3. Quotes 
have been procured from three different companies, Hurley Marine, Sign UP Graphics, and Meier’s Signs. 
 



Agenda – June 15, 2023 
 
4. Approval – Road Closure - Great Lakes Federal Credit Union – City Manager. 

Explanation: Great Lakes Federal Credit Union is requesting City Council approval to close the 2100 block of 3rd Place, 
on July 28, 2023, from 11:00 a.m. until 3:00 p.m., for their annual Member Appreciation Day. Administration is 
recommending approval of the request contingent upon the following: 1) Proper insurance was provided naming the 
City of Escanaba as an additional insured, and 2) event sponsors provide all labor material and clean up at the 
conclusion of the event. 
 

5. Approval – Annual Service Agreement - William Bonifas Fine Arts Center – City Manager. 
Explanation: The William Bonifas Fine Arts Center is seeking Council approval of their 2023-24 Service Agreement in 
the amount of $5,000. Under the terms of the agreement, the Center will provide (6 to 8) exhibitions in the Alice 
Powers Gallery, a minimum (6) on-stage (or radio) plays, a minimum of (40) classes in the creative and visual arts, and 
workshops, which will be available to the citizens of Escanaba. Administration is recommending approval of the Service 
Agreement. This is a budgeted item. 
 

6. Approval – Resolution 23-14, Resolution of Support - Bonifas Arts Center - 2024 Music Mondays Summer Concerts 
– City Manager. 
Explanation: The Bonifas Art Center is seeking Council approval of a resolution supporting their grant application to 
the Michigan Council for Arts and Cultural Affairs seeking funds for the "Music Mondays" Summer Concert Series. If 
approved, the City of Escanaba will serve as the Administrator for the funds. Administration is recommending 
approval. 
 

7. Approval – Delta County Historical Society Agreement – City Manager. 
Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council approval of the 2023/24 service agreement with the Delta 
County Historical Society. This item is included in the 2023/24 Budget. 
 

8. Approval – Contract with C2AE for the Webster Park Splash Pad – Recreation. 
Explanation: Administration is recommending approval of a contract between the City of Escanaba and C2AE for 
$17,000 for engineering services on the proposed Webster Park Splash. 
 

9. Approval – 2024 Tandem Plow Truck Purchase – Engineering/Public Works. 
Explanation: Public Works received four (4) bids for a 2024 Western Star Tandem Axel Plow Truck with a Dump Box, 
Underbody Scraper, four-way front plow and rear mount wing. Public Works is requesting approval to accept the bid 
from UP Truck Center in Quinnesec, MI with the body package from Monroe Truck Equipment of $246,370. 
 

10. Approval – Conduct Lead Service Line Replacements – Water. 
Explanation: Administration is requesting authorization to retain and hire any contractor to install a water service, 
who is licensed and insured to conduct this type of work, at the rate of $3,150.00 for a half service or $6,000.00 for 
an entire service per site or address, which is deemed necessary by the Water Department.   
 

11. Approval – Water Treatment Plant Generator – Water. 
Explanation: Administration is requesting City Council approval to purchase a new generator from Fabick Power 
Systems of Green Bay, Wisconsin for the Water Treatment Plant in an amount not exceed $113,700.00, which will 
include $4,000.00 for contingencies. Money is available and budgeted for this purchase in the current fiscal year. 
 

12. Approval – RAP 2.0 (Revitalization and Placemaking Program) – DDA. 
Explanation: A Ludington Street Workgroup has been working on project possibilities for the RAP 2.0 (Revitalization 
and Placemaking Program) grant through the MEDC. The City Council will be updated on proposed restrooms in the 
Municipal Dock area and streetscape at the eastern end of Ludington Street.  
 
 
 
 



Agenda – June 15, 2023 
 
13. Approval – Police Academy Training – EPSD. 

Explanation: Administration is seeking City Council approval of funds not to exceed $15,000 for the sponsorship of an 
Escanaba Public Safety recruit. This request is being done with the stipulation we are receiving $24,000 in grant funds 
from MCOLES to sponsor a recruit through the police academy. 
 

14. Approval – Extrication Equipment – EPSD. 
Explanation: Escanaba Public Safety received grants to replace its extrication equipment. Escanaba Public Safety is 
seeking City Council approval to purchase new extrication equipment. Public Safety has received $38,755.05 to cover 
the costs. 
 

APPOINTMENTS          
BOARD, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEE REPORTS      
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT        
ANNOUNCEMENTS       
ADJOURNMENT          

 
Respectfully Submitted,  

 
 
James R. McNeil  
City Manager 



 OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF ESCANABA, MICHIGAN 
Regular Council Meeting 
Thursday, May 18, 2023 

 
The meeting was called to order by the Honorable Mayor Mark Ammel at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers of City Hall located at 410 Ludington Street. 
 
Present: Mayor Mark Ammel, Council Members, Ronald J. Beauchamp, Tyler 

DuBord, and Todd Flath 
 
Absent: Council Member Moore 
 
Also Present: City Manager James R. McNeil, City Clerk Phil DeMay, Department Heads, 

media, and members of the public. 
 

City Clerk DeMay led Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Beauchamp moved, DuBord seconded, CARRIED UNAMINOUSLY, to excuse 
Council Member Moore’s absence.  
 
Flath moved, DuBord seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve Regular 
Meeting minutes from May 4, 2023, as submitted. 
 

 
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

DuBord moved,  Beauchamp seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve the 
City Council Agenda as submitted. 

 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION – None 
 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
PH-1 Public Hearing and Adoption – FY2023-24 Operating Budget.  
 

The Council has conducted four (4) public hearings and three (3) budget work 
sessions to set a proposed FY2023-24 operating budget. This was the final public 
hearing on the FY2023-24 City operating budget and will establish a City millage rate 
of 17.442 mills. Administration recommended Council approval of the FY2023-24 
Operating Budget, Capital Improvement Plan and Master fee schedule.  
 
This being a public hearing, Mayor Ammel asked for public comment. 
 
Hearing no public comment, Mayor Ammel then closed the public hearing. 
 
 



City Council Minutes  
May 18, 2023 – cont. 
 

2 
 

PH-1 DuBord moved, Flath seconded, to establish the City millage rate at 17.442 mills 
for the 2023-2024 budget year and to adopt the 2023-2024 City budget, Capital 
Improvement Plan and Master Fee Schedule as published. 
  
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Flath, Beauchamp, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
Absent: Moore 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 

PH-2 Public Hearing - Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Act (OPRA) – Exemption – 
District No. 28 – 723 Ludington Street. 
 

Lake Effect Distillery, LLC, owner of 723 Ludington Street, has requested to be 
enrolled in the Obsolete Properties Rehabilitation Act (OPRA) (PA 146, 2000) which 
allows for partial exemption of property taxes for a specified period of time so that 
certain types of property improvements can be made. The intent of the legislation is 
to encourage rehabilitation of underutilized or decaying commercial or 
commercial/residential properties in certain designated communities. Administration 
recommended an OPRA exemption up to twelve (12) years beginning December 30, 
2023, and ending December 30, 2035. 
 
This being a public hearing, Mayor Ammel asked for public comment. 
 
Hearing no public comment, Mayor Ammel then closed the public hearing. 
 
PH-2 “By Council Member DuBord, seconded by Council Member Beauchamp: 
  

RESOLUTION 23-12 
 

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AN APPLICATION FOR 
OBSOLETE PROPERTY REHABILITATION EXEMPTION FOR 

LAKE EFFECT DISTILLERY, LLC NO. 28 
 
Whereas, Pursuant to P.A. 146 of 2000, the City of Escanaba is a Qualified Local 

Governmental Unit eligible to establish one or more Obsolete Property 
Rehabilitation Districts; and 

 
Whereas, The City of Escanaba Legally established Obsolete Properties 

Rehabilitation District No. 28 on May 4, 2023, pursuant to a public 
hearing held on that date; and 

 
Whereas, The taxable value of this exemption plus the aggregate taxable value of 

property already exempt under PA 146 of 2000 and under PA 198 of 
1974 does not exceed 5% of the total taxable value of the City of 
Escanaba; and   



City Council Minutes  
May 18, 2023 – cont. 
 

3 
 

Whereas, The applicant is not delinquent in any taxes related to the facility; and  
 
Whereas, The applicant has provided all required items to the City of Escanaba; 

and 
 
Whereas, The application is for obsolete property as defined in Sec. 2(h) of Public 

Act 146 of 2000; and 
 
Whereas, Rehabilitation of this facility as covered by this exemption had not begun 

prior to May 4, 2023, the date the district was established; and 
 
Whereas,  The application relates to a rehabilitation program that, when completed, 

constitutes a rehabilitated facility within the meaning of PA 146 of 2000, 
situated within an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District; and 

 
Whereas,   Completion of the rehabilitated facility is calculated to, and will, at the 

time of issuance of the certificate, have the reasonable likelihood to 
increase commercial activity, to create employment, to retain 
employment, and to revitalize an urban area; and 

 
Whereas, The rehabilitation includes improvements aggregating 10% or more of 

the true cash value of the property at commencement of the 
rehabilitation as provided by Sec. 2(l) of PA 146 of 2000; and 

 
Whereas,  The application was approved at a public hearing on May 18, 2023, 

provided by Sec. 4(2) of PA 146 of 2000, allowing a period of thirty-
seven (37) months for completion of the rehabilitation;  

 
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved by the City Council of the City of Escanaba that Lake 

Effect Distillery, LLC 723 Ludington Street 
 
Be and is  hereby granted an Obsolete Property Rehabilitation Exemption for the real 
property located in Obsolete Property Rehabilitation District No. 28 at 723 Ludington 
Street, described as LOTS 4, 5, 6, AND THE NORTH 67.5 FEET OF LOTS 7 AND 8 
OF BLOCK 40 OF THE ORIGINAL PLAT, City of Escanaba, Delta  County, Michigan,  
 
For a period of twelve years beginning December 30, 2023, and ending December 30, 
2035. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Beauchamp, Flath, Mayor Ammel  
Nays:  None 
Absent: Moore 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.” 
 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 



City Council Minutes  
May 18, 2023 – cont. 
 

4 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
NB-1 First Reading of Ordinance No. 1275, the Appropriations Ordinance, Including 
the Millage Rate of 17.442 Mills and Setting the Date of Thursday, May 25, 2023, for 
the Second Reading, Public Hearing, and Adoption. 
 

Once the City Council approves the budget, the Council must approve a tax levy and 
authorize appropriations to implement the budget. Administration recommended a 
special meeting of the Council for Thursday, May 25, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. be scheduled 
for the second reading, public hearing, and adoption of Appropriations Ordinance No. 
1275. 
 
NB-1 DuBord moved, Flath seconded, CARRIED UNANMIOUSLY, to set the date of 
May 25, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. for the second reading, public hearing and adoption of the 
Appropriations Ordinance No. 1275 and millage rate of 17.442 mills. 

 
 
NB-2 First Reading of Ordinance No. 1276, the Tax Levy Ordinance, and Setting the 
Date of Thursday, May 25, 2023, for the Second Reading, Public Hearing and 
Adoption. 
 

Section 9, Chapter VIII, of the City Charter requires the City, by Ordinance, to levy 
taxes that may be necessary to meet the appropriations’ needs for the upcoming fiscal 
year budget. Administration recommended a special meeting of the Council for 
Thursday, May 25, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. be scheduled for the second reading, public 
hearing, and adoption of Tax Levy Ordinance No. 1276. 
 
NB-2 DuBord moved, Flath seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to set the date of 
May 25, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. for the second reading, public hearing, and adoption of 
Tax Levy Ordinance No. 1276. 
 

 
NB-3 First Reading of Ordinance No. 1277, the Electric Rate Ordinance, and Setting 
the Date of Monday, June 5, 2023, for Second Reading, Public Hearing, and 
Adoption. 

 
Annually, the City Council sets electric utility rates for the next fiscal year. Council was 
asked to consider this the first reading of Ordinance No. 1277 and to schedule the 
second reading and public hearing for June 5, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. 
 
NB-3 Beauchamp moved, DuBord seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to set the 
date of June 5, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. for the second reading, public hearing, and adoption 
of Ordinance No. 1277. 
 

 
NB-4 First Reading of Ordinance No. 1278, the Water Rate Ordinance, and Setting 
the Date of Monday, June 5, 2023, for Second Reading, Public Hearing, and 
Adoption. 
 



City Council Minutes  
May 18, 2023 – cont. 
 

5 
 

Annually, the City Council sets water utility rates for the next fiscal year. Council was 
asked to consider this the first reading of Ordinance No. 1278 and to schedule the 
second reading and public hearing for June 5, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. 
 
NB-4 DuBord moved, Flath seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to set the date of 
June 5, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. for the second reading, public hearing, and adoption of 
Ordinance No. 1278. 

 
 
NB-5 First Reading of Ordinance No. 1279, the Wastewater Rate Ordinance, and 
Setting the Date of Monday, June 5, 2023, for the Second Reading, Public Hearing, 
and Adoption. 
 

Annually, the City Council sets wastewater utility rates for the next fiscal year. Council 
was asked to consider this the first reading of Ordinance No. 1279 and to schedule 
the second reading and public hearing for June 5, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. 
 
NB-5 DuBord moved, Beauchamp seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to set the 
date of June 5, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. for the second reading, public hearing, and adoption 
of Ordinance No. 1279. 
 

 
NB-6 First Reading of Ordinance No. 1280, the Solid Waste Ordinance, and Setting 
the Date of Monday, June 5, 2023, for the Second Reading, Public Hearing, and 
Adoption.  
 

Annually, the City Council sets solid waste rates for the next fiscal year. Council was 
asked to consider this the first reading of Ordinance No. 1280 and to schedule the 
second reading and public hearing for June 5, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. 
 
NB-6 DuBord moved, Flath seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to set the date of 
June 5, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. for the second reading, public hearing, and adoption of 
Ordinance No. 1280. 
 

 
NB-7 Approval – Use of Public Space – Ludington Park and Ludington Street – 
Annual Krusin Klassic Car Fun Run – Administration. 
 

The Krusin Klassic Car Club requested City Council approval to use Ludington Park 
and Ludington Street on June 2, 2023, from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m., for their annual 
"Krusin Klassics Fun Run". Administration recommended approval of the request 
contingent upon the following: 1) Proper insurance was provided naming the City of 
Escanaba as an additional insured, and 2) event sponsors provide all labor material 
and clean up at the conclusion of the event. 
 
NB-7 Beauchamp moved, DuBord seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve 
a request from the The Krusin Klassic Car Club to use Ludington Park and Ludington 
Street on June 2, 2023, from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m., for their annual "Krusin Klassics 
Fun Run", contingent upon the following: 1) Proper insurance was provided naming 



City Council Minutes  
May 18, 2023 – cont. 
 

6 
 

the City of Escanaba as an additional insured, and 2) event sponsors provide all labor 
material and clean up at the conclusion of the event. 
 

 
NB-8 Approval – Property and Liability Insurance Renewal – City Controller. 
 

Administration requested City Council approval of the property and liability insurance 
policy with the Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority for July 1, 2023 
through June 30, 2024. 
 
NB-8 Flath moved, Beauchamp seconded, to approve the property and liability 
insurance policy with the Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority for July 1, 
2023 through June 30, 2024. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 

 
Ayes: Flath, Beauchamp, DuBord, Mayor Ammel   
Nays: None 
Absent: Moore 

 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 
NB-9 Approval – Request to Purchase City Property – 3110 5th Avenue South – 
Manager. 
 

Administration presented a request to purchase city property at 3110 5th Avenue 
South for the purpose of the construction of a single-family home. Prices are as 
follows: Bid $20,000, Ask $20,500, Private Appraisal $19,500, Assessor $20,500. 
 
NB-9 DuBord moved, Flath seconded, to approve a request to purchase city property 
at 3110 5th Avenue South for the purpose of the construction of a single-family home 
for the amount of $20,000 and construction must commence within 18 months along 
with sidewalks included. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Flath, Beauchamp, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
Absent: Moore 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 

 
 

NB-10 Approval – WWTP Digester Bio-Solids Removal & Hauling – 2023 – 
Wastewater Department. 
 

Administration requested City Council approval to retain professional services from 
Synagro of 435 Williams Court, Suite 100, Baltimore, Maryland for the digester bio-



City Council Minutes  
May 18, 2023 – cont. 
 

7 
 

solids cleaning and hauling in an amount not to exceed $200,000.00, which includes 
$3,775.00 in contingencies. 
 
NB-10 Beauchamp moved, Ammel seconded, to approve to retain professional 
services from Synagro of 435 Williams Court, Suite 100, Baltimore, Maryland for the 
digester bio-solids cleaning and hauling in an amount not to exceed $200,000.00, 
which includes $3,775.00 in contingencies. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Beauchamp, Mayor Ammel, DuBord, Flath 
Nays: None 
Absent: Moore 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 
NB-11 Approval – Drinking Water System Asset Management Plan (DWAM) – Water 
Department. 
 

Administration requested City Council approval to retain C2AE from Escanaba, MI, for 
professional services with regard to the City of Escanaba Water Plant Drinking Water 
System Asset Management Plan in an amount not to exceed $152,460.00. 
 
NB-11 DuBord moved,  Beauchamp seconded, to approve to retain C2AE from 
Escanaba, MI, for professional services with regard to the City of Escanaba Water 
Plant Drinking Water System Asset Management Plan in an amount not to exceed 
$152,460.00.  
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Beauchamp, Flath, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
Absent: Moore 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 

 
 
APPOINTMENT(S) TO CITY BOARDS, COMMISSIONS, AND COMMITTEES  

 
Mayor Ammel, with Council Consensus made the following reappointment: 
 

Mary Blasier reappointed to the Housing Commissions, expiring June 1, 2028. 
 

Council made the following reappointment: 
 

Don Curran reappointed to the Zoning Board of Appeals, expiring June 1, 2026. 
 

 



City Council Minutes  
May 18, 2023 – cont. 
 

8 
 

City Manager, with Council Consensus made the following appointment: 
 
Josh Anthony appointed to the Harbor Advisory Committee, expiring June 1, 2026. 
 
Gail Brazeau appointed to the Board of Library Trustees, expiring June 1, 2026. 

 
 
BOARD, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  
  

Council Members reviewed City Board and Commission meetings each attended 
since the last City Council Meeting. 
 
 

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

• Thanked the community for all their involvement in welcoming the 1st crew ship to 
the City of Escanaba. There was great feedback from the visitors on the crew ship.  

 

Flath moved, DuBord seconded, to go into recess, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.  
 
The time was 7:39 p.m. 
 

DuBord moved, Beauchamp seconded, to come back in session, CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
The time was 7:46 p.m. 

 

NB-12 Closed Session – Discussion of Labor Contracts – HR Director/Treasurer. 
 

Administration requested Council go into a closed session to consider material exempt 
from discussion or disclosure by statute under MCL 15.268(c), identified as 
negotiation of a collective bargaining agreement(s). 
 
DuBord moved, Flath seconded, to go into Closed Session. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Flath, Beauchamp, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
Absent: Moore 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
The time was 7:46 p.m. 
 



City Council Minutes  
May 18, 2023 – cont. 
 

9 
 

DuBord moved, Beauchamp seconded, to come back into Open Session. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Beauchamp, Flath, Mayor Ammel  
Nays: None 
Absent: Moore 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
The time was 8:28 p.m. 
 
No Council actions were taken during closed session. 
 
 
Hearing no further public comment, Beauchamp moved, the Council adjourned at 8:28 
p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Phil DeMay     Approved: ____________________ 
City Clerk              Mark Ammel, Mayor 



 OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF ESCANABA, MICHIGAN 
Special Council Meeting 
Thursday, May 25, 2023 

 
Pursuant to a meeting notice posted on May 8, 2023, the meeting was called to order by 
the Honorable Mayor Mark Ammel at 9:00 a.m. in the Council Chambers of City Hall 
located at 410 Ludington Street. 
 
Present: Mayor Mark Ammel, Council Members, Ronald J. Beauchamp, Tyler 

DuBord, Todd Flath, and Karen Moore 
 
Absent: None 
   
Also Present: City Manager James R. McNeil, City Clerk Phil DeMay, Department Heads, 

media, and members of the public. 
 
 
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

Flath moved, DuBord seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve the City 
Council Agenda as submitted. 

 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION – None 
 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
PH-1 Second Reading, Public Hearing of Ordinance No. 1275, the Appropriations 
Ordinance, Including the Millage Rate of 17.442 Mills. 
 

In accordance with Chapter VIII. General Finance of the City Charter, Section 9, 
Council was required by ordinance to levy taxes that are necessary to meet the 
appropriations made for the upcoming fiscal year. 
 
This being a public hearing, Mayor Ammel asked if there was any public comment. 
 
Hearing no public comment, Mayor Ammel closed the public hearing and the following 
resolution was made: 
 
PH-1 “By Council Member DuBord, seconded by Council Member Moore; 
 
Resolved, That Ordinance No. 1275, the Appropriations Ordinance, given its second 
reading and public hearing at this meeting, be and is hereby adopted and that it be 
published in accordance with the requirements of the City Charter.” 
 

Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 



City Council Minutes  
May 25, 2023 – cont.  
 

 

 

2 

Ayes: DuBord, Moore, Beauchamp, Flath, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 

 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.” 
 

Herewith Ordinance No. 1275 adopted by title: 
 

"AN ORDINANCE TO MAKE APPROPRIATIONS AND CORRESPONDING 
REVENUES FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024." 

 

Full text in Ordinance Record “M” 
 
 

PH-2 Second Reading, Public Hearing of Ordinance No. 1276, the Tax Levy 
Ordinance. 
 

In accordance with Chapter VIII. General Finance of the City Charter, Section 9, 
Council must approve a tax levy and authorize appropriations to implement the budget 
for the upcoming fiscal year. 
 
This being a public hearing, Mayor Ammel asked if there was any public comment. 
 
Hearing no public comment, Mayor Ammel closed the public hearing and the following 
resolution was made: 
 
PH-2 “By Council Member Flath, seconded by Council Member Beauchamp; 
 
Resolved, That Ordinance No. 1276, the Tax Levy Ordinance setting the millage rate 
at 17.442 mills, given its second reading and public hearing at this meeting, be and is 
hereby adopted and that it be published in accordance with the requirements of the 
City Charter.” 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Flath, Beauchamp, Moore, DuBord, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.” 
 
Herewith Ordinance No. 1276 adopted by title: 
 
“AN ORDINANCE TO LEVY SUCH TAXES AS MAY BE NECESSARY TO MEET 
APPROPRIATIONS MADE AND ALL SUMS REQUIRED BY LAW TO BE RAISED 
TO DEFRAY THE DEBTS, EXPENDITURES, AND LIABILITIES OF SAID CITY FOR 
THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING ON THE 30TH DAY OF JUNE 2024, AND REQUIRING 
AN AUTHORIZED LEVY ON THE JULY 2023, CITY TAX ROLL OF RETURNED 
UNPAID SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS, TOGETHER WITH SUCH PENALTIES 
THEREON AS IS PROVIDED BY THE CITY CHARTER.” 



City Council Minutes  
May 25, 2023 – cont.  
 

 

 

3 

Full text in Ordinance Record “M” 
 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
NB-1 Approval – CIPP Bid for Lining of Storm Sewer – Engineering/Public Works. 
 

Bids for the 2023 CIPP Sewer Lining Project were solicited and were opened on May 
16, 2023, which includes (Area 1) storm sewer pipe that runs along the alley east of 
South 22nd Street, from the alley north of 1st Avenue South to 3rd Avenue South and 
(Area 2) storm sewer pipe that runs from the intersection of 5th Avenue South and 
South 20th Street northwest to the alley north of 5th Avenue South. Administration 
sought City Council approval of the 2023 CIPP Sewer Lining Project bid (Area 1) from 
Tunnel Vision of Escanaba MI at a cost not to exceed $193,212. The department has 
$200,000 budgeted for the CIPP Lining Project. 
 
NB-1 Moore moved, Beauchamp seconded, to approve of the 2023 CIPP Sewer 
Lining Project bid (Area 1) and (Area 2) from Tunnel Vision of Escanaba MI. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Moore, Beauchamp, DuBord, Flath, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 

NB-2 Approval – Additional Items of Work – South 10th Street DWSRF Lead Service 
Line Contract – Engineering/Public Works. 
 

Administration requested City Council approval to utilize the existing contract unit 
prices for the additional work described. Funding for the additional work was budgeted 
under the Major Street Fund. 
 
NB-2 Moore moved, DuBord seconded, to approve to utilize the existing South 10th 
Street DWSRF Lead Service Line contract unit prices for the additional work 
described. 

 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Moore, DuBord, Beauchamp, Flath, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 



City Council Minutes  
May 25, 2023 – cont.  
 

 

 

4 

NB-3 Approval – Additional items of Work – Stephenson Avenue DWSRF Lead 
Service Line Contract – Engineering/Public Works. 
 

Administration requested City Council approval to utilize the existing contract unit 
prices for the additional work described. 

 
NB-3 Moore moved, Flath seconded, to approve to utilize the existing Stephenson 
Avenue DWSRF Lead Service Line contract unit prices for the additional work 
described. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Moore, Flath, Beauchamp, DuBord, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 

 
 
APPOINTMENTS – None 
 
BOARD, COMMISSION, AND COMMITTEE REPORTS – None 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – None 
 
 

DuBord moved, Beauchamp seconded, to go into recess, CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY.  
 
The time was 9:25 a.m. 
 
DuBord moved,  Flath seconded, to come back in session, CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
The time was 9:30 a.m. 
 

 
NB-4 Closed Session – Discussion of Labor Contracts – HR Director/Treasurer. 
 

Administration requested Council go into a closed session to consider material exempt 
from discussion or disclosure by statute under MCL 15.268(c), identified as 
negotiation of a collective bargaining agreement(s). 

 
DuBord moved,  Flath seconded, to go into Closed Session by statute under MCL 
15.268(c), identified as negotiation of a collective bargaining agreement(s). 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 



City Council Minutes  
May 25, 2023 – cont.  
 

 

 

5 

Ayes: DuBord, Flath, Moore, Beauchamp, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
The time was 9:31 a.m. 
 
DuBord moved, Moore seconded, to come back into Open Session. 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Moore, Beauchamp, Flath, Mayor Ammel  
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
The time was 9:56 a.m. 
 
No Council actions were taken during closed session. 

 
NB-4(a) Flath moved, DuBord seconded, to approve the Clerical Contract as written.  

 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Flath, DuBord, Moore, Beauchamp, Mayor Ammel  
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
NB-4(b) DuBord moved, Beauchamp seconded, to approve the Public Safety Contract 
as written.  

 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Beauchamp, Moore, Flath, Mayor Ammel  
Nays: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 

Action was taken today at the Special Meeting because Council wanted everyone to be 
present to vote. There are multiple scheduled absences at the next regular meeting.  
 

 
Hearing no further public comment DuBord moved, Beauchamp seconded, Council 
adjourned at 9:59 a.m.   

 
 
 



City Council Minutes  
May 25, 2023 – cont.  
 

 

 

6 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 

Phil DeMay     Approved: _________________________  
City Clerk       Mark Ammel, Mayor 

 



 OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF ESCANABA, MICHIGAN 
Special Council Meeting 
Thursday, June 5, 2023 

 
Pursuant to a meeting notice posted on May 22, 2023, the meeting was called to order 
by the Honorable Mayor Mark Ammel at 9:02 a.m. in the Council Chambers of City Hall 
located at 410 Ludington Street. 
 
Present: Mayor Mark Ammel, Council Members, Ronald J. Beauchamp, Tyler 

DuBord, and Karen Moore 
 
Absent: Council Member Todd Flath 
   
Also Present: City Manager James R. McNeil, City Clerk Phil DeMay, Department Heads, 

media, and members of the public. 
 
DuBord moved, Beauchamp seconded, CARRIED UNAMINOUSLY, to excuse Council 
Member Flath’s absence. 

  
 
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

Beauchamp moved, Moore seconded, CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY, to approve the 
City Council Agenda as submitted. 

 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION – None 
 
BRIEF PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

Escanaba City Charter requires the Council to pass electric, water, wastewater and 
solid waste utility rate ordinances on the first Monday of June, for the upcoming fiscal 
year 2023-24. 
 

PH-1a Second reading, public hearing and adoption of Ordinance No. 1277, the 
Electric Rate Ordinance. A 1.75 percent rate increase is being recommended. 
 

Annually, the City Council set electric utility rates for the next fiscal year. 
Administration recommended approval of the electric rates as provided. Council was 
asked to consider this the second reading, public hearing, and adoption of Ordinance 
No. 1277. 
 
Inasmuch as this was a public hearing, Mayor Ammel asked for comments from the 
Council and audience relative to the setting of the Electric Rate Ordinance No. 1277. 
 
Hearing no public comment, Mayor Ammel then closed the public hearing. 
 



City Council Minutes  
June 5, 2023 – cont.  
 

 

 

2 

PH-1a “By Council Member DuBord, seconded by Council Member Moore; 
 
Resolved, That Ordinance No. 1277, the Electric Rate Ordinance, given its second 
reading and public hearing at this meeting, be and it is hereby adopted, and that it be 
published in accordance with the requirements of State law and the City Charter.” 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Moore, Beauchamp, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
Absent: Flath 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.” 
 
Herewith Ordinance No. 1277, adopted by title: 
 
“AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE RATES TO BE CHARGED BY THE CITY OF 
ESCANABA FOR ELECTRIC ENERGY DEMAND AND AVAILABILITY OF 
SERVICE, TO BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT ON THE BILLINGS PROCESSED 
AFTER JUNE 30, 2023, AND ALL BILLINGS THEREAFTER UNTIL FURTHER 
AMENDED BY THE COUNCIL.” 
 
Full text in Ordinance Record “M.” 

 
 
PH-1b Second reading, public hearing and adoption of Ordinance No. 1278, the 
Water Rate Ordinance. A 4 percent rate increase is being recommended. 
 

Annually, the City Council set water utility rates for the next fiscal year. Council was 
asked to consider this the second reading, public hearing, and adoption of Ordinance 
No. 1278. 
 
Inasmuch as this was a public hearing, Mayor Ammel asked for comments from the 
Council and audience relative to the setting of the Water Rate Ordinance No. 1278. 
 
Hearing no public comment, Mayor Ammel then closed the public hearing. 
 
PH-1b “By Council Member Beauchamp, seconded by Council Member DuBord; 
 
Resolved, That Ordinance No. 1278, the Water Rate Ordinance, given its second 
reading and public hearing at this meeting, be and it is hereby adopted, and that it be 
published in accordance with the requirements of State law and the City Charter.” 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: Beauchamp, DuBord, Moore, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
Absent: Flath 



City Council Minutes  
June 5, 2023 – cont.  
 

 

 

3 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.” 
 
Herewith Ordinance No. 1278, adopted by title: 
 
“THE ORDINANCE FIXING THE RATES TO BE CHARGED BY THE CITY OF 
ESCANABA FOR WATER DISTRIBUTION, TREATMENT, AND AVAILABILITY TO 
BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT ON THE BILLINGS PROCESSED AFTER JUNE 
30, 2023, AND ALL BILLINGS THEREAFTER UNTIL FURTHER AMENDED BY 
THE COUNCIL.” 
  
Full text in Ordinance Record “M.” 

 
 
PH-1c Second reading, public hearing and adoption of Ordinance No. 1279, the 
Wastewater Rate Ordinance.  A 3 percent rate increase is being recommended. 
 

Annually, the City Council set wastewater utility rates for the next fiscal year. Council 
was asked to consider this the second reading, public hearing, and adoption of 
Ordinance No. 1279. 
 
Inasmuch as this was a public hearing, Mayor Ammel asked for comments from the 
Council and audience relative to the setting of the Wastewater Rate Ordinance No. 
1279. 
 
Hearing no public comment, Mayor Ammel then closed the public hearing. 
  
PH-1c “By Council Member DuBord, seconded by Council Member Moore; 
 
Resolved, That Ordinance No. 1279, the Wastewater Rate Ordinance, given its 
second reading and public hearing at this meeting, be and it is hereby adopted, and 
that it be published in accordance with the requirements of State law and the City 
Charter.” 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Moore, Beauchamp, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
Absent: Flath  
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.” 
 
Herewith Ordinance No. 1279, adopted by title: 
 
“AN ORDINANCE FIXING THE CHARGES TO BE ASSESSED BY THE CITY OF 
ESCANABA FOR WASTEWATER COLLECTION AND TREATMENT AND THE 
AVAILABILITY OF SERVICE TO BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT ON THE 
BILLINGS PROCESSED AFTER JUNE 30, 2023, AND ALL BILLINGS 
THEREAFTER UNTIL FURTHER AMENDED BY THE CITY COUNCIL.” 



City Council Minutes  
June 5, 2023 – cont.  
 

 

 

4 

Full text in Ordinance Record “M.” 
 
 

PH-1d Second reading, public hearing and adoption of Ordinance No. 1280, the 
Solid Waste, Recycling, Yard Waste and Litter Ordinance.  No rate increases are 
recommended. 
 

Annually, the City Council set solid waste rates for the next fiscal year. Council was 
asked to consider this the second reading, public hearing, and adoption of Ordinance 
No. 1280. 
 
Inasmuch as this was a public hearing, Mayor Ammel asked for comments from the 
Council and audience relative to the setting of the Solid Waste, Recycling, Yard Waste 
and Littering Ordinance No. 1280. 
 
Hearing no public comment, Mayor Ammel then closed the public hearing. 
 
PH-1d “By Council Member DuBord, seconded by Council Member Beauchamp; 
 
Resolved, That Ordinance No. 1280, the Solid Waste, Recycling, Yard Waste and 
Littering Ordinance, given its second reading and public hearing at this meeting, be 
and it is hereby adopted, and that it be published in accordance with the requirements 
of State law and the City Charter.” 
 
Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: DuBord, Beauchamp, Moore, Mayor Ammel 
Nays: None 
Absent: Flath 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.” 
 
Herewith Ordinance No. 1280, adopted by title: 
 
“AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 14, FIXING THE CHARGES TO BE 
ASSESSED BY THE CITY OF ESCANABA FOR SOLID WASTE, RECYCLING, 
YARD WASTE AND LITTERING, TO BE IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT ON THE 
BILLINGS PROCESSED AFTER JUNE 30, 2023 AND ALL BILLINGS 
THEREAFTER UNTIL FURTHER AMENDED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF ESCANABA.” 
 
Full text in Ordinance Record “M.” 
 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
 
NEW BUSINESS – None 
 



City Council Minutes  
June 5, 2023 – cont.  
 

 

 

5 

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

• Kruisin Klassics had a great turnout and parade! 

• Enhanced Escanaba will plant their “annuals” Wednesday June 6th. 

• Mayor Ammel read a proclamation at the new “Abrahamson Courts tennis complex 
at the Escanaba Junior and Senior School. The tennis complex was made possible 
by generous donations, including significant contributions from Patricia 
Abrahamson and her son, Jeff. 

 
Hearing no further public comment DuBord moved, Beauchamp seconded, Council 
adjourned at 9:18 a.m.   

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 

Phil DeMay     Approved: _________________________  
City Clerk       Mark Ammel, Mayor 

 





MEMORANDUM                                                                                                             May 31, 2023 

 

TO: James McNeil, Phil Demay 

 

FROM: Melissa Becotte 

 

SUBJECT: 2022/23 Budget Amendment 

 

 

Each year, the City amends the Appropriations Ordinance.  The amendment is prepared primarily to 

comply with State law.  This represents the first, and final, amendment for fiscal year 2022/23. 

 

In most cases, the proposed amendments are based either on expenditures to date or items 

specifically approved for the remainder of the fiscal year.  These amendments are not designed to 

create additional expenditure opportunities.  In some cases, the over expenditures will not occur - we 

request an amendment because our projections are close and it is prudent to amend the ordinance in 

order to avoid any over expenditure issues.  Our amendment process concerns itself primarily with 

over expenditures.  While it is understood that many activities will come in under budget, no attempt 

is made to amend or decrease those appropriations.  In other words, the amendment process does not 

attempt to provide estimates of year-end results.     

 

Attached please find an amendment worksheet, showing the Original Appropriations Ordinance, 

proposed additions and deletions and the Final Appropriations Ordinance, subject to the Council’s 

approval.  In the General Fund, the proposed changes are highlighted with a number in parenthesis; 

these numbers correspond to the explanations below.   

 

Please contact me with any questions or concerns.  I will be at the Council meeting to answer any 

questions. 

 

GENERAL FUND 

 

The 2022/23 General Fund budget was originally adopted with a use of $366,800 in fund balance.  

This amendment will increase the use of fund balance by $8,694.  As mentioned above, this will not 

be the year-end result since we do not amend down activities that will come in under budget.  I 

estimate the final usage of fund balance to be around $100,000.  

 

I am amending revenues by $213,000 to account for higher Small Taxpayer PPT reimbursement, 

marijuana dispensary fee/licenses, higher than anticipated revenue sharing and increased 

donations/contributions that cover various expenditures.   

 

I am amending the expenditures by $252,220 for the reasons detailed below. 

 

It is recommended that the following changes be made in the General Fund appropriations: 

 

(1) Increase the City Controller appropriation by $9,500.  The additional funds are requested to 

cover the cost of the overhead allocation study that was completed. 

 

(2) Increase the City Clerk appropriation by $5,500.  The additional funds are requested to   

cover overhead costs as well as the cost to update the online Code of Ordinances. 



 

(3) Increase the Auditor appropriation in the amount of $365.  The funds are requested to cover 

the General Fund share of actual cost of the annual audit. 

 

(4) Increase the IT appropriation by $500.  The additional funds are requested to cover overhead 

costs. 

 

(5) Add the Bad Debts appropriation by $15,320.  The funds are requested to cover 

uncollectable A/R invoices. 

 

(6) Increase the Attorney appropriation by $18,500.  The additional funds are requested to cover 

legal fees. 

 

(7) Increase the Public Safety appropriation by $62,000.  The additional funds are requested to 

cover the purchase of a new K9 and new extrication equipment.  The K9 purchase was 

covered 100% by donations.  The extrication equipment is funded through a grant and 

donations. 

 

(8) Increase the Crossing Guards appropriation by $6,700.  The additional funds are requested to 

cover the cost of full-time City staff to fill in for guard duty at the schools. 

 

(9) Increase the Crosswalks appropriation by $4,000.  The additional funds are requested to 

cover the cost of a contractor to install ADA crosswalks. 

 

(10) Increase the Sidewalks appropriation by $10,000.  The additional funds are requested to 

cover the cost of installing a special assessed sidewalk.  This excess cost has been paid in full 

by the property owner. 

 

(11) Increase the Solid Waste Collection appropriation by $7,000 for the purchase of wheels and 

lids for trash carts. 

 

(12) Increase the Planning Commission appropriation by $400.  The additional funds are 

requested to cover training costs for board members. 

 

(13) Increase the Promotional Community appropriation by $5,000.  The additional funds are 

requested to cover the cost of City staff assisting with City sponsored community activities. 

 

(14) Increase the Tourism Promotion appropriation by $18,000.  The additional funds are 

requested to cover the costs associated with Rock the Dock events as well as music in the 

park.  Both are paid fully by donations. 

 

(15) Increase the Community Services appropriation by $15,000.  The additional funds are 

requested to cover the in-kind services provided to Enhance Escanaba as part of the 

hydrangea tree grant. 

 

(16) Increase the Recreation appropriation by $38,000.  The additional funds are requested to 

cover the purchase of a kayak launch, tennis court resurfacing and an emergency generator at 

the Civic Center.  The kayak launch was covered by a donation and half the cost of the 

generator will be covered by a grant. 



 

 

(17)     Increase the Transfer to Parking Maintenance appropriation by $36,435.  The additional 

funds are requested to cover increased cost of maintaining City parking lots as well as the 

cost of snow removal from DDA parking lots.  By contract, the DDA is limited to $15,000 of 

costs for plowing and snow removal on their lots and the City pays the rest. 

 

Due to these appropriations changes, the Overhead to Utilities is being increased $30,526.   

 

 

GRANTS FUND 

 

The original Appropriations Ordinance did not contain any projects in this fund.  The projects result 

in the following recommended amendments:  

 

Non-motorized Pathway Grant – Funded through several agencies, this project built a non-motorized 

path to connect north and south Escanaba.  This project required a $50,000 match which was 

budgeted to be paid from the Gas Retirement fund.  We are amending for negative grant revenue in 

the amount of $100,090.  This is a result of recording full grant funding due to the City in the prior 

year but not actually maximizing the grant upon project completion.  We are also amending revenues 

 by $47,090 for a transfer from the UDAG fund to cover costs that were not grant eligible.  Finally, 

we are amending expenditures for completion of this project in the amount of $57,755. 

 

LIBRARY FUND 

 

Administration is requesting an amendment the Library Fund to increase revenues in the amount of 

$105,000 to account for grant revenue and a reduction in revenue from Fines and Fees.  We are also 

amending expenditures $105,000 to cover costs for the mobile outreach vehicle that carried over 

from the prior year. 

 

OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUND 

 

Administration is requesting an amendment add revenues in the amount of $12,215 for the Opioid 

settlement.  More funds will be distributed in coming years. 

 

PARKING MAINTENANCE FUND 

 

Administration is requesting an amendment to the Parking Maintenance Fund revenues and 

expenditures by $35,000 for plowing and snow removal from the City and DDA parking lots. 

 

HOUSING REHAB FUND 

 

Administration is requesting an amendment to increase expenditures by $100 to cover audit costs. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



UDAG REVOLVING LOAN FUND 

 

Administration is requesting an amendment to increase expenditures by $235 for to cover audit costs 

and to add a transfer to the Grants Fund of $47,090 to cover City costs related to the Non-Motorized 

Pathway grant. 

 

FARM HOME GRANT FUND 

 

Administration is requesting an amendment to reduce revenues by $50 due to a reduction in interest 

earnings and increase expenditures by $55 for audit costs. 

 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 

Administration is requesting amendment to increase expenditures in the amount of $47,945 to cover 

additional public relations activities promoting downtown. 

 

BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT FUND 

 

Administration is requesting an amendment of $3,000 for both revenues and expenditures to cover 

the addition of a brownfield TIF collections and reimbursements. 

 

SUMMARY 

 

As indicated previously, the purpose of the amendment process is to help to eliminate any potential 

over expenditures.    

 

Please contact me with any questions on this information. 
 

 

 

         

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 U:\Controller\WP\Budget2223\FinalAmendmentNarrative.doc 



 ORDINANCE NO. 1281 
 

"AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE NO. 1261, ENTITLED AN ORDINANCE TO 

MAKE APPROPRIATIONS AND CORRESPONDING REVENUES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

JUNE 30, 2023." 

 

 

THE CITY OF ESCANABA ORDAINS:   

 

The total number of mills of ad valorem property taxes to be levied for fiscal year 2022/2023 is 17.442. 

 

CHAPTER I 

Section 101.  That there is hereby appropriated by the City of Escanaba to various departments and funds for 

specific purposes, the several amounts set forth in the following tabulation, to be expended in accordance with 

the budget as approved, except that the City Manager is hereby empowered to transfer appropriations between 

activities and objects of expenditures, subject to the limitation imposed by Chapter VIII, Section 8, of the City 

Charter.  The appropriations and revenues set forth are for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. 
                                                                                                                                                      

GENERAL FUND 
Revenues: 

   Taxes                                                   $5,860,325 

   Licenses and Permits                                        41,250 

   Intergovernmental                                        1,819,770 

   Charges for Services/Fines                                 350,040 

   Electric Utility Fund Contribution                      765,790 

   Transfer from Land Development Fund                       60,000 

   Transfer from DDA Fund          2,500    

   Transfer from Office Equipment Fund       39,200  

   Transfer from Sanitary Landfill Fund      285,000 

   Miscellaneous Revenues                                 215,100 

 Subtotal            $9,438,975 

   Transfer from Fund Balance            $375,494 

      Total General Fund Revenues                          $9,814,469 

  

Expenditures: 

   City Council                                               $30,732 

   City Manager                                               314,870 

   City Controller                                            452,435 

   City Clerk          182,605 

   Auditors                                                    20,365 

   Information Technology         66,140 

   Bad Debts           15,320 

   Board of Review           2,050 

   Treasurer          288,925 

   Billing           401,706 

   Assessor           311,235 

   Elections           25,815 

   City Hall and Grounds         81,252 

   Attorney                                                    106,700 

   Human Resources         124,155 

   Insurance/Bonds           6,500 

   Public Safety             4,720,615 

   Community Preservation        158,830 

   Crossing Guards          52,665 

   Crosswalks            9,000 

   Sidewalks           22,325 

   Engineer           400,360 

   Street Lighting         170,000 

   Care of Trees and Shrubs        172,335 

   Solid Waste Collection        499,645 

   Sanitary Landfill                                  285,000 

   Composting Activities                                       93,305 

   Snow Plowing for Garbage Collection       21,125 

   Alley Maintenance          50,145 

   Celebration – Flags           5,060 

   Fourth of July           22,980 

   Zoning           110,360 

   Planning Commission           2,500 

   Promotional Community         12,550 

   Tourism Promotion          52,675  

   Parks                          333,960 

   Community Services                                          38,648 

   Recreation                                                 734,000 

   Boat Launches                                              15,775 

   Band            43,660 

   Transfer to Parking Maintenance Fund       54,435 



Ordinance No 1281 – cont. 

S:\Clerk\Ordinances\ord1281 Amend Appropriations 2022-23.docx 2 

   Transfer to Library Fund                                   450,000 

   Transfer to Marina Fund          1,000 

   Transfer to Escanaba Building Authority Fund             149,000 

      Sub-total                                   $11,112,758 

     Less: Overhead to Utilities                       1,298,289 

      Total General Fund Expenditures                      $9,814,469 

 

MAJOR STREET FUND 
Revenues: 

   State Shared Revenues                                   $1,452,000 

   State Grants               375,000 

   Interest Earnings          18,000 

    Sub-total            $1,845,000 

   Transfer from Fund Balance        511,804 

      Total Major Street Fund Revenues                       $2,356,804 

     

Expenditures: 

   Operating Expenses                                             $856,804 

   Street Construction                                      1,200,000 

   Transfer to Local Street Fund       300,000 

      Total Major Street Fund Expenditures            $2,356,804 

  

LOCAL STREET FUND 
Revenues: 

   State Shared Revenues                                  $490,000 

   Interest Earnings                                            4,500 

   Property Owner’s Share of SA         2,500 

   Transfer from Major Street Fund                            300,000 

   Sub-total              $797,000 

   Transfer from Fund Balance        246,409 

      Total Local Street Fund Revenues                   $1,043,409 

  

Expenditures: 

   Operating Expenses                                        $493,409 

   Street Construction                                    550,000 

      Total Local Street Fund Expenditures            $1,043,409 

  

LIBRARY FUND 
Revenues: 

   State Funding                                                  $26,166 

   Federal Revenue         128,994 

   Penal Fines Allocation                                     108,144 

   Fines and Fees                                              11,500 

   Interest Earnings                                             1,000 

   Donations           10,000 

   Transfer from General Fund        450,000 

 Sub-Total              $735,804 

   Transfer from Fund Balance                                  45,743 

     Total Library Fund Revenues                                $781,547 

  

Expenditures: 

   Operating Expenditures                                    $781,547 

      Total Library Fund Expenditures                            $781,547 

  

BEZOLD TRUST FUND 
Revenues: 

   Interest Earnings                                          $2,000 

   Transfer from Fund Balance         18,000 

      Total Bezold Trust Fund Revenues                      $20,000 

  

Expenditures: 

   Qualifying Expenditures                                $20,000 

      Total Bezold Trust Fund Expenditures                 $20,000 

  

GAS RETIREMENT FUND 
Revenues: 

   Interest Earnings                                          $10,000 

 Total Gas Retirement Fund Revenues                          $10,000 

  

Expenditures: 

   Transfer to Grants Fund             $0 

     Total Gas Retirement Fund Expenditures                           $0 

  

SANITARY LANDFILL FUND 
Revenues: 

   Revenue from Sales                                    $300,000 



Ordinance No 1281 – cont. 

S:\Clerk\Ordinances\ord1281 Amend Appropriations 2022-23.docx 3 

   Penalties on Collections                                     1,200 

   Interest Earnings                                              900 

 Sub-total              $302,100 

   Transfer from Fund Balance              0 

      Total Sanitary Landfill Fund Revenues         $302,100 

  

Expenditures: 

   Transfer to General Fund                                  $285,000 

   Administrative Expense                                         175 

   City Wide Clean-Up               0 

     Total Sanitary Landfill Fund Expenditures                  $285,175 

 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) FUND 
Revenues: 

   TIF Tax Collections                                       $330,000 

   State Reimbursement of Lost PPT         5,000 

State Grants                0 

   Interest Earnings                                            2,200 

    Total DDA Fund Revenues                                    $337,200 

  

Expenditures: 

   Operating Expenditures                                       $334,700 

   Transfer to General Fund          2,500 

   Transfer to Major Street Fund             0 

      Total DDA Fund Expenditures                               $337,200 

 

HOUSING REHABILITATION FUND 
Revenues: 

   Interest Earnings                                           $2,500 

      Total Housing Rehabilitation Fund Revenues                         $2,500 

  

Expenditures: 

   Administrative Expense                                             $520 

      Total Housing Rehabilitation Fund Expenditures               $520 

 

LAND DEVELOPMENT FUND 
Revenues: 

   Property Owner’s Share of Special Assessments                     $420 

   Interest Earnings                                           14,000 

      Sub-Total               $14,420 

   Transfer from Fund Balance                     115,095 

      Total Land Development Fund Revenues                       $129,515 

 

Expenditures: 

   Property Improvements                                      $11,500 

   Insurance/Bonds             240 

   Professional Services          7,500 

   Property Taxes              275 

   Transfer to General Fund         60,000 

   Transfer to Grants Fund         50,000 

     Total Land Development Fund Expenditures                   $129,515 

 

PARKING MAINTENANCE FUND 
Revenues: 

   D.D.A. Fund Contractual                                    $18,000 

   Transfer from General Fund         54,450 

  Total Parking Maintenance Fund Revenues                     $72,450 

 

Expenditures: 

   D.D.A. Lot Expenditures                                    $45,000 

   City Lot Expenditures         27,450 

     Total Parking Maintenance Fund Expenditures          $72,450 

  

E.D.A. REVOLVING LOAN FUND 
Revenues: 

   Interest Earnings                                       $4,000 

      Total E.D.A.R.L.F. Revenues                                  $4,000 

 

Expenditures: 

   Administrative Costs                                        $1,500 

     Total E.D.A.R.L.F. Expenditures                      $1,500 

 

 

 

 



Ordinance No 1281 – cont. 

S:\Clerk\Ordinances\ord1281 Amend Appropriations 2022-23.docx 4 

U.D.A.G. REVOLVING LOAN FUND 
Revenues: 

   Interest Earnings                                               $30,000 

 Sub-total          $30,000 

   Transfer from Fund Balance         47,100     

 Total U.D.A.G.R.L.F. Revenues                                    $77,100 

  

Expenditures: 

   Administrative Costs                                        $1,535 

   Transfer to Grants Fund         47,165 

     Total U.D.A.G.R.L.F. Expenditures                                $48,700 

  

FARMERS HOME GRANT FUND 
Revenues: 

   Interest Earnings                                              $50 

 Sub-Total              $50 

   Transfer from Fund Balance            180 

      Total Farmers Home Grant Fund Revenues                         $230 

  

Expenditures: 

   Administrative Costs                                          $230 

      Total Farmers Home Grant Fund Expenditures                     $230 

  

DRUG LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND 
Revenues: 

   Local Forfeiture Proceeds                                   $1,000 

   Interest Earnings                                              350 

Total Drug Law Enforcement Fund Revenues                     $1,350 

  

Expenditures: 

   City Expenditures                                           $1,000 

      Total Drug Law Enforcement Fund Expenditures                 $1,000 

 

OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUND 
Revenues: 

   Opioid Settlement Revenue                                  $12,215 

    Total Opioid Settlement Fund Revenues                    $12,215 

  

Expenditures: 

   Qualifying Expenditures                                              $0 

      Total Opioid Settlement Fund Expenditures                     $0 

 

BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT FUND 
Revenues: 

   TIF Tax Collections                                        $84,900 

   Interest Earnings                                              300 

     Total Brownfield Redevelopment Fund Revenues                $85,200 

 

Expenditures: 

   Developer Reimbursements                                   $84,900 

    Total Brownfield Redevelopment Fund Expenditures            $84,900 

 

GRANTS FUND 
Revenues: 

   Grant Revenue                                        -$100,090 

   Transfer from UDAG          47,090 

Sub-total              -$53,000 

   Transfer from Fund Balance                                      110,755 

Total Grants Fund Revenues                      $57,755 

  

Expenditures: 

   Non-Motorized Pathway Project                                   $57,755 

      Total Grants Fund Expenditures                  $57,755 

 

 

The following is provided for informational purposes only, as provided by Michigan 

P.A. 2 of 1968 

 

ELECTRIC UTILITY FUND 
Revenues: 

   Revenue from Sales                                    $13,892,466 

   Rents                                                       60,000 

   Miscellaneous          126,000 

   Interest Earnings                                           92,000 

     Total Electric Fund Revenues                            $14,170,466 



Ordinance No 1281 – cont. 

S:\Clerk\Ordinances\ord1281 Amend Appropriations 2022-23.docx 5 

 Expenses: 

   Operating Expenses                                     $11,687,851 

   Depreciation                                             1,000,000 

   Overhead to General Fund                                   770,555 

   Contribution to General Fund                               765,790 

     Total Electric Fund Expenses                            $14,224,196 

 

WATER UTILITY FUND 
Revenues: 

   Revenue from Sales                                      $4,785,000 

   Miscellaneous                74,675 

   Interest Earnings                                           32,000 

     Total Water Fund Revenues                                $4,891,675 

  

Expenses: 

   Operating Expenses                                      $2,486,995 

   Depreciation                                               550,000 

   Overhead to General Fund                                   265,413 

   Bond Interest Expense                                      150,000 

     Total Water Fund Expenses                                $3,452,408 

  

WASTEWATER UTILITY FUND 
Revenues: 

   Revenue from Sales                                      $3,867,500 

   Miscellaneous           11,250 

   Interest Earnings                                            4,500 

     Total Wastewater Fund Revenues                    $3,883,250 

  

Expenses: 

   Operating Expenses                                       $1,663,955 

   Depreciation                                                    423,350 

   Overhead to General Fund                                        240,370 

   Bond Interest Expense                                      109,910 

     Total Wastewater Fund Expenses                           $2,437,585 

 

ESCANABA BUILDING AUTHORITY FUND 
Revenues: 

   Lease Payments-Transfer from General Fund                     $149,000 

   Rent Income-City Hall/Library       133,248 

   Interest Earnings                                              300 

     Total Escanaba Building Authority Fund Revenues                 $282,548 

  

Expenses: 

   Operating Expenses                                             $205,460 

   Interest Expense                                             6,250 

   Depreciation Expense                                       162,500 

     Total Escanaba Building Authority Fund Expenses                 $374,210 

  

MARINA FUND 
Revenues: 

   Fees and Concessions                                           $262,850 

   Interest Earnings                                              900 

   Contribution from General Fund         1,000 

      Total Marina Fund Revenues                                      $264,750 

  

Expenses: 

   Operating Expenses                                             $199,669 

   Interest Expense                                             5,095 

   Depreciation                                                74,140 

     Total Marina Fund Expenses                                      $278,904 

 

 

APPROVED:       APPROVED: 

 

 

_____________________________    _________________________ 

Laura J. Genovich      Mark Ammel 

City Attorney       Mayor 

  

Date Approved:   (Month) (Date), 2023     ATTEST: 

Date Published:   (Month) (Date), 2023 

  

 _________________________ 

 Phil DeMay    

        City Clerk 



Ordinance No 1281 – cont. 

S:\Clerk\Ordinances\ord1281 Amend Appropriations 2022-23.docx 6 

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete copy of an Ordinance duly adopted by the 
City Council of the City of Escanaba, County of Delta, Michigan, at a Special Meeting held on the (date) day 
of (month), 2023, and was published in the Daily Press, a newspaper of general circulation in the City of 
Escanaba on (month) (date), 2023, and that said meeting was conducted and public notice of said meeting was 
given pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act, being Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 
1976, and that the minutes of said meeting were kept and will be or have been made available as required by 
said Act. 
 

 

 _________________________  

        Phil DeMay  

 City Clerk 





 

 
 

 

 

 

6/15/2023 

 

To:   City of Escanaba Board of Commissioners 

From:  Northern Initiatives 

Re:   CDBG Loan Request – LeverEdge Chiropractic PLLC 

 

LeverEdge Chiropractic PLLC is a chiropractic practice located in the City of Escanaba and is owned 50/50 by 

Dr. Kevin Noel and Dr. Michael Carlson.  They have requested to borrow $35,000 from the City of Escanaba 

Revolving Loan Fund to purchase equipment and provide working capital as they grow and expand their 

practice.   

LeverEdge has secured bank financing to purchase a building and relocate its practice.  They are in need of the 

additional $35,000 from the City of Escanaba RLF program to purchase additional fitness equipment and 

provide working capital.  These funds will support the creation of one additional full time job that will benefit a 

low to moderate income individual. 

The business is currently leasing space at 1814 N. Lincoln Road, Ste G and plan to relocate to 3801 19th Ave N 

(still within the City of Escanaba).   

 

Thank you, 

 

 

Colleen M. Duflo 
Senior Lender 
Northern Initiatives 
 

 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 458868BA-8EA8-443D-9348-A4C244CF58CD



���������	�
������������������������������	��������������



���������	�
������������������������������	��������������



���������	�
������������������������������	��������������



���������	�
������������������������������	��������������

����� �!



���������	�
������������������������	������������������	�



���������	�
������������������������	������������������	�



���������	�
������������������������	������������������	�



���������	�
������������������������	������������������	�

��� �! !"



 

RESOLUTION # 23-15  

APPLICATION FOR FUNDING THROUGH THE CITY OF ESCANABA 

STATE OF MICHIGAN COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) REVOLVING LOAN FUND 

(RLF) PROGRAM. FOR LEVEREDGE CHIROPRACTIC PLLC. 

 

WHEREAS,  LeverEdge Chiropractic PLLC. has made application through Northern Initiatives, Inc. for The 

City of Escanaba CDBG Revolving Loan Funds in the amount of $35,000 to aid in financing the purchase of 

equipment and to fund working capital within the City of Escanaba, and 

WHEREAS, the project location meets zoning requirement is consistent with the City of Escanaba’s 

Comprehensive Plan, the project will employ at least 51% low to moderate income persons, and 

WHEREAS, The City of Escanaba participates in the Regional RLF Model, has executed a Subrecipient 

Agreement with Northern Initiatives and has designated The City Manager, James McNeil and Kim 

Gustafson, City Treasurer as its representatives on its Regional Funds Approval Committee, and 

WHEREAS, the Regional Fund Approval Committee has reviewed and approved said application submitted 

by LeverEdge Chiropractic PLLC on June 1, 2023, and 

WHEREAS, no project costs (CDBG and non-CDBG) will be incurred prior to the formal loan award, 

completion of the environmental review procedures and formal, written authorization to incur costs has 

been provided by your CDBG Project Manager, and 

WHEREAS, The City of Escanaba has advertised in The Daily Press newspaper and has held a public 

informational hearing in regard to the CDBG Revolving Loan Fund application on June 15, 2023. 

THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that The City of Escanaba acknowledges that it has held a public 

informational meeting on June 15, 2023 in regard to the CDBG Revolving Loan Fund Application by 

LeverEdge Chiropractic PLLC in the amount of $35,000 for the purchase of equipment and to provide 

working capital for its business within The City of Escanaba, that the project will employ at least 51% low 

to moderate income persons and the project meets zoning requirements and is consistent with the City 

of Escanaba’s Comprehensive Plan and authorizes the City Manager to sign the part 2 Application and all 

attachments. 

Upon a call of the roll, the vote was as follows: 
 
Ayes: 
Nays: 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.” 
 
I the undersigned, being duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Escanaba, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing constitutes a true and complete excerpt of the Escanaba City Council Minutes of the 
City of Escanaba, County of Delta, Michigan, at a regular City Council Meeting held on June 15, 2023, and 
that said meeting was conducted and public notice was given pursuant to and in full compliance with 
the Open Meetings Act, Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, and that the minutes of said meeting were 
kept and will be or have been made available as required by said Act. 
 
 
____________________________ 
Phil DeMay, City Clerk 





 

 

 

  P.O. Box 948 • Escanaba, MI 49829-0948    (906)786-9402 • fax (906) 786-4755  

 
 
 

RESOLUTION 23-13 
 

Resolution of the City Council of the City of Escanaba, Michigan to Withdraw from 
Membership with Great Lakes Utilities 

 
Whereas, City of Escanaba, Michigan (the City) owns and operates an electric utility pursuant to 

Michigan law, and through such utility distributes and sells electric power at retail; 

 
Whereas, Great Lakes Utilities (GLU) is a municipal electric company created pursuant to Wis. 

Stats. Sec. 66.0825; 

 
Whereas, The City joined GLU on December 16, 2011 with a Resolution by the City Council on 

December 15, 2011; 

 
Whereas, The City no longer requires membership with GLU due to cancellation of the MISO 

Services Agreement; 

 

Whereas, The Escanaba City Council wishes to withdraw membership from GLU; 

 
Whereas, The City acknowledges that the withdrawal from GLU will take effect six (6) months after 

the resolution is filed with the WI Secretary of State; 

 
Now, Therefore, it is resolved by the Escanaba City Council: 

 

(1) To withdraw from GLU. 

(2) To authorize and direct the City Clerk to forward a certified copy of the resolution to the GLU 
Board, requesting that this resolution be filed with the WI Secretary of State. 

(3) That the City acknowledges that the withdrawal will take effect six (6) months after the 
resolution is filed with the WI Secretary of State. 

 
Certification 

I,  , City Clerk of the City of Escanaba, Michigan, do hereby certify that I have 
compared the above resolution with the original on file in my office and that the same is true, complete, 
and correct copy of said document. 

 

In Witness Hereof, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Corporation Seal of the City of 
Escanaba, Michigan this  day of  , 20   

 
 
 

 

City Clerk 

 

Mission Statement 
Enhancing the enjoyment and livability of our community by providing quality municipal services. 

The City of Escanaba is an equal opportunity employer and provider. 





1  

 

TRAINING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

This Training Services Agreement (“Agreement”), dated  , is entered into between Municipal 

Electric Utilities of Wisconsin, Inc. (“MEUW”), a nonprofit corporation organized under Wisconsin law, 

and the City of Escanaba, a political subdivision of the State of Michigan (“Client”). 

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, MEUW offers an Electric Utility Safety and Training Program to help municipal electric 

lineworkers utilize safe work practices and maintain a high level of compliance with workplace health and 

safety standards under state and federal laws and regulations; 

 

WHEREAS, Client operates a municipal electric utility and is committed to keeping its electric lineworkers 

safe, and desires to take advantage of the high-quality, cost-effective training and networking provided by 

MEUW and its training staff. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, MEUW and Client do hereby agree as 

follows: 

 

AGREEMENT 

 

1. Services: MEUW will provide access for Client employees to attend and participate in its regularly 

scheduled training sessions for the Term of this Agreement. 
 

2. Term: This Agreement shall be for a term of two (2) years, effective as of January 2nd, 2024. It shall 

be automatically renewed for successive annual terms unless either party provides written notice at 

least 30 days before the current term ends, in which case the Agreement shall terminate at the end 

of the Term in which such notice was given. 

 

3. Amendment: This Agreement may be amended or modified upon the mutual agreement of both 

parties, but only if in writing. Such amendment or addendum shall be signed, dated and appended 

to this Agreement. 
 

4. Compensation: For the Services, Client agrees to pay MEUW an annual fee of $16,000 (“Annual 

Fee”). The Annual Fee shall be invoiced upon execution of this Agreement and on the anniversary 

of that date for the Term of the Agreement, with the balance due within thirty (30) days after the 

date of MEUW’s invoice. The Annual Fee is intended to be all-inclusive. MEUW shall provide 

Client with written notice of any increase in the Annual Fee at least 90 days prior to the start of the 

next calendar year. 

 
5. Client Obligations: Client shall be responsible for the following: 

a. Provide an accurate listing of electric lineworkers who will attend MEUW-provided training; 

b. Schedule participation of employees in regular training sessions; 

c. Provide appropriate feedback to MEUW leadership throughout the Term; 

d. Provide to MEUW, in a timely manner, any information that MEUW reasonably requests as 



2  

necessary to perform the Services. It is understood and acknowledged that MEUW may rely on 

the accuracy of information provided by Client and its representatives. 

 

6. MEUW Obligations: MEUW shall be responsible for the following: 

a. Employ, assign, and supervise qualified staff to deliver Services to Client; 

b. Provide timely notification of training schedule to enable Client to effectively plan for and 

schedule participation by its workers; 

c. Provide management support to Client during safety- or health-related conflicts or personnel 

issues; 

d. Apply an industry standard interpretation of applicable safety- or health-related laws, rules, 

codes and regulations as they pertain to compliance. 

 

7. Independent Contractor: In the performance of the Services, MEUW is an independent contractor 

and shall not be considered an employee, agent, or representative of Client for any purpose. All 

employees of MEUW providing services under the Agreements shall at all times remain employees 

of MEUW and shall not be considered employees or agents of Client. 

 

8. Prohibition on Third Party Beneficiaries and Assignment of Rights and Duties: The Services 

performed by MEUW under this Agreement are solely for the benefit of Client and nothing in this 

Agreement shall be construed to create any obligation, duty, or liability on the part of either party 

to any third party. Assignments of benefits and delegations of duties created by this Agreement are 

prohibited and without effect. 

 

9. Standard of Care: Client acknowledges that MEUW undertakes to provide the Services described 

herein to Client in a manner consistent with MEUW’s status as a nonprofit corporation that serves 

public sector entities. Client acknowledges that MEUW will perform Services provided hereunder 

in a commercially reasonable manner with qualified personnel trained in applicable safety- and 

health-related laws, rules, codes, and regulations. Client bears the risk of its own actions or inactions 

as regards Client’s compliance with applicable federal and state laws, rules, codes, and regulations 

as they relate to workplace health and safety. 

 

10. Limitation of Liability: Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, neither party shall 

be liable to the other for any indirect, incidental, consequential punitive, multiple, delay-related, 

performance-related, loss of use, loss of opportunity, loss of goodwill, special or exemplary 

damages, lost profits of government, or regulatory penalties or sanctions arising out of, due to, or in 

connection with its performance or nonperformance under this Agreement, or any of its obligations 

herein, whether based in contract, tort, strict liability, warranty or otherwise, except with respect to 

its reckless or willful misconduct or gross negligence. THE TOTAL LIABILITY OF ONE PARTY 

TO THE OTHER PARTY PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT SHALL NOT EXCEED THE 

AMOUNT OF SERVICES FEES PAID BY CLIENT TO MEUW HEREUNDER. 

 

11. Disputes: If any controversy or claims arise out of, or relate to this Agreement, including, but not 

limited to, an alleged breach of the Agreement, the parties shall attempt to resolve the dispute by 

direct discussion and negotiation by the principals (who, for MEUW shall be the President and 

CEO). If the parties cannot resolve the dispute within sixty (60) days or whatever extended period 

the parties may agree to, then either party may pursue any remedies it has in law or equity. 



3  

 

12. Program Materials: Client agrees not to use any materials, programs, or processes developed by 

MEUW and provided to Client under this Agreement (collectively, “Program Materials”) for any 

use other than Client’s own use. Client may duplicate the Program Materials without obligation 

of royalty or first seeking MEUW’s consent. 

 

13. Confidentiality: Except as permitted under this Agreement or required by applicable law, MEUW 

agrees to use the information about Client (including, without limitation, its facilities, employees, 

safety programs) to which MEUW has access as a result of its performance hereunder 

(“Confidential Information”) solely to the extent necessary to fulfill its obligations hereunder, 

including (without limitation) disclosing such information only to those of its employees and 

agents with a need to know in order for MEUW to perform its obligations hereunder, and MEUW 

shall not use, disclose, copy, sell, transfer, publish, display, or otherwise make any Confidential 

Information available to any third party without the advance written consent of Client. MEUW 

shall hold Confidential Information in confidence, and shall not disclose or use Confidential 

Information for any purpose other than as necessary to carry out the intent of this Agreement. 

MEUW shall use the same care and discretion with respect to Confidential Information as 

MEUW requires with respect to its own most confidential information (which in no event shall be 

less than commercially reasonable), including the use of security devices and procedures intended 

to prevent unauthorized access to such information. For the avoidance of doubt, Confidential 

Information does not include information that (i) is or becomes publicly available, other than by 

MEUW, without breach of this Agreement; (ii) is received from a third party not under a 

confidentiality obligation to Client; (iii) is already in the possession of MEUW without obligation 

of confidence at the time first disclosed hereunder; or (iv) independently developed by MEUW 

without reference to Confidential Information. 

 

14. Insurance. Throughout the Term, MEUW shall maintain, at its own cost and expense, insurance 

coverage necessary to comply with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations. In addition to and 

without limiting the foregoing, the parties acknowledge that MEUW has provided to Client a 

certificate of insurance and/or other materials indicating the insurance coverage types and 

amounts currently held by MEUW, including (without limitation) workers’ compensation, 

employers liability, and general (public) liability insurance. Throughout the Term, MEUW shall 

maintain the same insurance coverage types in amounts equal to or greater than set forth in such 

materials delivered to Client. Promptly after request from time to time in the future, MEUW shall 

provide Client with certificates of insurance or such other proof of MEUW’s insurance as Client 

shall reasonably require. 

 

15. No Solicitation of MEUW Employees: Client shall not, directly or indirectly, solicit any MEUW 

employee to terminate his or her employment with MEUW so that Client may employ the MEUW 

employee. Client shall not hire or enter into a contract for any services with any MEUW RSC 

whose employment with MEUW terminated within the immediately preceding 12-month period. 

 

16. Notices: Any notice provided for or concerning the Agreement shall be (a) in writing and 

delivered by person, mail, or facsimile, or (b) sent by electronic transmission with reasonable 

verification of receipt by the party to whom the notice is transmitted, to the following: 



4  

If to MEUW: Michael Czuprynko, Manager of Safety Services 

Municipal Electric Utilities of Wisconsin 

725 Lois Dr. 

Sun Prairie, WI 53590 

Phone: (608) 478-2530 

Email: mczuprynko@meuw.org 
 

If to Client: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
17. Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in counterparts. 

 

18. Governing Law:  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Wisconsin. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this Agreement as of the date first written above. 
 

 

MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC 

UTILITIES OF WISCONSIN, INC. 

 

 

By:   

Michael Czuprynko 

Manager of Safety Services 

CITY OF ESCANABA 

 

 

 

By:   

Name: 

Title: 

mailto:mczuprynko@meuw.org




















 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Hiawatha Chef Supply 
400 N Lincoln Rd, Escanaba, MI 49829 
 
 
I am writing to inform you of a temporary partial closure of road 3rd P1 between our drive thru and our parking 
lot for our annual member appreciation day. This closure will not include your parking lot exit.  I have attached 
a map of the blocked area.  Our member appreciation day is Friday 7/28/2023 from 11:00-3:00 PM. Please reach 
out to me if you have any questions or concerns regarding the closure. Thank you.  
 
 
Sincerely,  
Becky Townsend  

 
Marketing Specialist 
GLFFCU 
 
 
 

 









AGREEMENT 

THE CITY OF ESCANABA 

AND 

THE WILLIAM BONIFAS FINE ARTS CENTER INC. 

It is agreed The William Bonifas Fine Arts Center, Inc, will provide the following services for citizens of 
the City of Escanaba.  Reasonable charges can be made for those activities designated.  It is understood 
that no resident of the City of Escanaba will be excluded from such activities as long as they have applied 
within a reasonable period of time to attend or participate in the outlined services.   
 
The Art Center will provide a minimum six (6) on -stage (or radio) plays annually, to be performed by the 
Players de Noc or other professional groups.  These performances will be open to the general public, 
and particularly, the citizens of Escanaba.  Such performances should be scheduled on an annual basis.  
 
The Art Center will provide six-eight (6-8) art exhibits to be held in the Alice Powers Gallery.  These 
exhibits will be open to the general public, particularly, the citizens of Escanaba.  It is recommended that 
such exhibitions be at no charge to residents of our community.  In the event of continued restrictions 
to public gatherings related to the COVID-19 pandemic, the exhibits will be available for online viewing. 
 
The Art Center will conduct a minimum of forty (40) classes in the creative and visual arts. Fees can be 
charged for participation in these classes and programs, which will be open to the general public, 
particularly, the citizens of Escanaba.  In addition, workshops specifically for artists will be offered. 
 
In consideration for these services, the City of Escanaba will pay to the William Bonifas Fine Arts Center 
the amount of  Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000) during the fiscal year July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024.  
The Bonifas Arts Center will furnish to the City Manager, sufficient notice of all activities to be held at 
the Center.  Sufficient copies should be forwarded to the City for distribution to the City Council, Clerk 
and City Manager.  Sufficient notices of all activities will be sent to the local media well in advance of the 
date of the actual performance or classes to be held.  Where possible, the City of Escanaba will be 
acknowledged as a patron of the Bonifas Art Center, with the appropriate recognition being made by the 
board. 
 
This agreement is effective July 1, 2023, and will terminate on June 30, 2024. 
 
CITY OF ESCANABA     WILLIAM BONIFAS FINE ARTS CENTER, INC 
 
 
____________________________   _______________________________ 
James McNeil      Al Hansen 
City Manager      Board President 
 
 
____________________________   _______________________________ 
Phil DeMay      Debra Skerbeck 

City Clerk      Treasurer 







 
 
 

RESOLUTION 23-14 
 

Resolution in Support of a Grant Application to the 
Michigan Council for Arts and Cultural Affairs 

 

AT A MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ESCANABA, MICHIGAN, HELD ON JUNE 15, 2023 
 

RESOLUTION - SUPPORTING THE GRANT APPLICATION TO THE MICHIGAN ARTS 
AND CULTURAL COUNCIL SEEKING MATCHING FUNDS FOR THE 

"MUSIC MONDAYS" SUMMER CONCERT SERIES. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Escanaba, Michigan, does hereby find as follows: 
 

WHEREAS, the City desires to support the cultural lives of area residents through opportunities to be 
exposed to new art and music; 
 

WHEREAS, the City has an excellent partner in the Bonifas Arts Center to successfully organize and 
promote community events, and promote cultural tourism and sponsor area musicians through public 
concerts; 
 

WHEREAS, the City will administer the grant funds, if awarded, as set forth in the application; 
 

WHEREAS, the City has a policy detailing equal opportunity provisions for job applicants and public 
accommodations and agrees to conform to the Assurances and Guidelines set forth in the application; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY PROCLAIMED by the City Council of the City of Escanaba, Michigan, 
that the grant application should be made to the Michigan Council for Arts and Cultural Affairs for the 
August 3, 2023, deadline. 
 

Ayes:   
Nays:  

 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.” 

 





AGREEMENT 

THE CITY OF ESCANABA 

AND 

THE DELTA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY 

It is agreed the Delta County Historical Society will provide the following services for the citizens 
of the City of Escanaba.  Reasonable charges can be made for those activities designated with 
City Approval.  In 1985, the Delta County Historical Society began restoration work on the 
Escanaba Lighthouse, formerly occupied by the U. S. Coast Guard.  It is agreed the Delta County 
Historical Society will provide a Lighthouse Museum and Nautical Display and other exhibits 
that will be open to the public.   
 
His Delta County Historical Society is a 501c3 entity and agrees to comply with all applicable 
laws related to that corporate status. 
 
In consideration for these services, the City of Escanaba will pay to the Delta County Historical 
Society an amount not to exceed Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000) during the fiscal year July 1, 
2023, through June 30, 2024, for continued work and new exhibits at the museum and 
lighthouse.  The Delta County Historical Society will furnish to the City, through the City 
Manager, sufficient notice of all activities to be held at the Escanaba Lighthouse.  Sufficient 
copies should be forwarded to the City for distribution to the City Council, City Clerk and City 
Manager.  Sufficient notices of all activities will be sent to the local media well in advance of the 
date of the actual activity to be held.  The City of Escanaba will be acknowledged as a 
participant in this project. 
 
This is a contribution for services only and the City of Escanaba assumes to liability of/for the 
operations of Enhance Escanaba. 
 
 
This agreement in effective July 1, 2023, and will terminate on June 30, 2024. 
 
CITY OF ESCANABA     DELTA COUNTY HISTORICAL SOCIETY 
 
 
____________________________   _______________________________ 
James McNeil, City Manager    Charles, Lindquist, It’s President 
 
 
 











































































Google Maps https://www.google.com/maps/@45.7457972,-87.0495237,384m/data=!3m1!1e3?entry=ttu

1 of 1 5/29/2023, 9:59 AM

Bender, Rebecca
Callout
Escanaba City Hall

Bender, Rebecca
Rectangle

Bender, Rebecca
Callout
Improved crossing, parking, and medians

Bender, Rebecca
Rectangle

Bender, Rebecca
Polygon Line

Bender, Rebecca
Callout
Ludington Park (continues)

Bender, Rebecca
Callout
Obsolete Public Restroom

Bender, Rebecca
Callout
Proposed Public Restroom

Bender, Rebecca
Polygon

Bender, Rebecca
Callout
Private housing and hotel development underway

Bender, Rebecca
Arrow

Bender, Rebecca
Callout
Outdoor event space



ATTACHMENT 2: Before Photos 

Figure 1. Municipal Dock Restroom/Lift Station 

 

Figure 2 Municipal Dock 

 

 

 



Figure 3 Second Street to Third Street (New housing development area) 

 

Figure 4. Third Street to Fourth Street (County Buildings pictured) 

 



Figure 5. Fourth Street to Fifth Street (City Hall and Public Library pictured) 

 



AP
PR

OV
ED

 B
Y:

DE
SI

GN
ED

 B
Y:

CH
EC

KE
D 

BY
:

- -

-

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:B

EN
DE

R,
 R

EB
EC

CA
  6

/6/
20

23
 1:

11
 P

M
N:

\20
22

\22
02

90
_E

sc
an

ab
a_

CW
SR

F_
PP

_2
02

3\D
ra

wi
ng

s\S
he

ets
\R

-1
02

 LU
DI

NG
TO

N 
ST

 8+
00

 T
O 

16
+0

0.d
wg

 - 
G-

00
1 C

OV
ER

 S
HE

ET
C2

AE
.S

TA
ND

AR
D.

ST
B

220290

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y

DE
LT

A 
CO

UN
TY

, M
IC

HI
GA

N

09/2022

G-001

----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----

CO
VE

R 
SH

EE
T

ESCANABA, MICHIGAN

MISS DIG

CI
TY

 O
F 

ES
CA

NA
BA

, M
IC

HI
GA

N
LU

DI
NG

TO
N 

ST
RE

ET
SC

AP
E 

AN
D 

MU
NI

CI
PA

L D
OC

K 
RE

ST
RO

OM
S

CONSTRUCTION PLANS
FOR

CITY OF ESCANABA, MICHIGAN
LUDINGTON STREETCAPE AND MUNICIPAL DOCK RESTROOMS

W
E 

RE
CY

CL
E

SHEET

REVISIONS

www.c2ae.com

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e 

 · 
 e

ng
in

ee
rin

g

REV DESCRIPTION DATE

PROJ. #:

DATE:

BL
AC

K
W

HI
TE

TH
E 

BA
R 

BE
LO

W
 S

HO
W

S 
GR

AY
SC

AL
E 

FR
OM

 W
HI

TE
 T

O 
SO

LID
 B

LA
CK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PILES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PILES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PILES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PILES

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
591.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
587.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
588.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
592.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
580.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
580.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
580.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
589.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
591.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
583.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
587.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
589.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
588.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
585.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
586.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
589.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
592.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
590.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
589.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
584.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
591.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
587.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
590.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
584.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
588.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
587.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
592.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
584.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
582.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
585.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
587.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
591.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
586.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
591.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
587.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
592.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
591.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
133

AutoCAD SHX Text
593.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
410

AutoCAD SHX Text
114

AutoCAD SHX Text
305

AutoCAD SHX Text
223

AutoCAD SHX Text
212

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
401

AutoCAD SHX Text
230

AutoCAD SHX Text
205

AutoCAD SHX Text
117

AutoCAD SHX Text
118

AutoCAD SHX Text
112

AutoCAD SHX Text
412

AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text
208

AutoCAD SHX Text
128

AutoCAD SHX Text
216

AutoCAD SHX Text
122

AutoCAD SHX Text
322

AutoCAD SHX Text
416

AutoCAD SHX Text
109

AutoCAD SHX Text
225

AutoCAD SHX Text
201

AutoCAD SHX Text
419

AutoCAD SHX Text
121

AutoCAD SHX Text
209

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
115

AutoCAD SHX Text
116

AutoCAD SHX Text
418

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
420

AutoCAD SHX Text
113

AutoCAD SHX Text
409

AutoCAD SHX Text
411

AutoCAD SHX Text
423

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
111

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
130

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE ERIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAND RAPIDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAVERSE CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE SUPERIOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MACKINAW CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE HURON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALPENA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PETOSKEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAYLORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAYLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE MICHIGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAGINAW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANSING

AutoCAD SHX Text
JACKSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETROIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
KALAMAZOO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAULT STE. MARIE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESCANABA

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARQUETTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOUGHTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST. IGNACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONTONAGON

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRONWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BESSEMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WAKEFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEWBERRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
800-482-7171

AutoCAD SHX Text
72 HOURS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3 WORKING DAYS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TOLL-FREE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL MISS DIG

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEFORE YOU DIG

AutoCAD SHX Text
IT IS UNDERSTOOD THAT THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PERFORM ALL WORK UNDER THIS CONTRACT IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE PROVISIONS, POLICIES, RULES AND STANDARDS OF THE MICHIGAN OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT (MIOSHA), BEING ACT 154 OF THE PUBLIC ACTS OF 1974 AND AS AMENDED.

http://mdotcf.state.mi.us/public/specbook/2012/
AutoCAD SHX Text
EXCEPT WHERE OTHERWISE INDICATED ON THE PLANS OR IN THE PROPOSAL AND SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS CONTAINED THEREIN, ALL MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE SECTIONS OF THE MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 2012 STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION AND THE CURRENT SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS. (AVAILABLE AT WWW.MDOT.STATE.MI.US/SPECBOOK/2012/)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANISTIQUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLADSTONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT LOCATION



AP
PR

OV
ED

 B
Y:

DE
SI

GN
ED

 B
Y:

CH
EC

KE
D 

BY
:

- -

-

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:B

EN
DE

R,
 R

EB
EC

CA
  6

/6/
20

23
 1:

12
 P

M
N:

\20
22

\22
02

90
_E

sc
an

ab
a_

CW
SR

F_
PP

_2
02

3\D
ra

wi
ng

s\S
he

ets
\R

-1
02

 LU
DI

NG
TO

N 
ST

 8+
00

 T
O 

16
+0

0.d
wg

 - 
LU

DI
NG

TO
N 

ST
 0+

00
 T

O 
8+

00
C2

AE
.S

TA
ND

AR
D.

ST
B

220290

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y

DE
LT

A 
CO

UN
TY

, M
IC

HI
GA

N

09/2022

R-101

----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----

LU
DI

NG
TO

N 
ST

 0+
00

 T
O 

8+
00

Feet
0 40 80

CI
TY

 O
F 

ES
CA

NA
BA

, M
IC

HI
GA

N
LU

DI
NG

TO
N 

ST
RE

ET
SC

AP
E 

AN
D 

MU
NI

CI
PA

L D
OC

K 
RE

ST
RO

OM
S

W
E 

RE
CY

CL
E

SHEET

REVISIONS

www.c2ae.com

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e 

 · 
 e

ng
in

ee
rin

g

REV DESCRIPTION DATE

PROJ. #:

DATE:

BL
AC

K
W

HI
TE

TH
E 

BA
R 

BE
LO

W
 S

HO
W

S 
GR

AY
SC

AL
E 

FR
OM

 W
HI

TE
 T

O 
SO

LID
 B

LA
CK LANDSCAPE LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
591.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
592.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
592.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
592.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
133

AutoCAD SHX Text
593.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
410

AutoCAD SHX Text
401

AutoCAD SHX Text
419

AutoCAD SHX Text
409

AutoCAD SHX Text
411

AutoCAD SHX Text
500

AutoCAD SHX Text
504

AutoCAD SHX Text
423

AutoCAD SHX Text
506

AutoCAD SHX Text
502

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 5TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR CONTINUATION SEE SHEET C-102

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 4TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
LUDINGTON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 4TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 5TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
"BUMP-OUT CURBLINE WITH ADA RAMPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPING AND BIKE RACKS AT CORNERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESSIBLE PARKING WITH CURB CUTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
VEGETATED MEDIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MID-BLOCK CROSSINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANGLE PARKING AT 30-DEGREES

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESTIMATED 90 L.F. CURB AND GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DO NOT PRUNE TERMINAL LEADER OR BRANCH TIPS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRUNE AWAY DEAD OR BROKEN BRANCHES ONLY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE NURSERY APPLIED TREE WRAP, TAPE OR STRING FROM TREE TRUNK AND CROWN. REMOVE ANY TAGS OR LABELS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRUNE SUCKERS OFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET ROOT BALL LEVEL TO GRADE OR SLIGHLTLY ABOVE GRADE ( ") IF IN 12") IF IN CLAY SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULCH 4" DEEP LEAVING 3" CIRCLE OF BARE SOIL AROUND TRUNK OF TREE. THE ROOT FLAIR MUST SHOW ABOVE GROUND LEVEL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITHOUT LOOSENING THE ROOT BALL, CUT, PEEL BACK, AND REMOVE AS MUCH OF THE WIRE BASKET AND BURLAP AS POSSIBLE (AT LEAST THE TOP THIRD). IF THE ROOT BALL STARTS TO FALL APART AS YOU TAKE OFF THE WIRE AND BURLAP, BACKFILL THE HOLE WITH ENOUGH SOIL TO STABILIZE IT. THEN CAREFULLY REMOVE WIRE AND BURLAP, AND BACKFILL AS YOU GO TO KEEP THE ROOT BALL INTACT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCARIFY SIDES OF PLANTING HOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTER ROOT BALL IN PLANTING HOLE. LEAVE BOTTOM OF PLANTING HOLE FIRM. BACKFILL WITH EXISTING NATIVE SOIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. DIG THE PLANT POCKET A MINIMUM OF 3 TIMES WIDER THAN THE WIDTH OF THE ROOT BALL AND ONLY AS DEEP AS DIG THE PLANT POCKET A MINIMUM OF 3 TIMES WIDER THAN THE WIDTH OF THE ROOT BALL AND ONLY AS DEEP AS THE ROOT SYSTEM, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED. 2. LOOSEN SUBSOIL TO A DEPTH OF 4". LOOSEN EARTH ON SIDES OF PLANT POCKET TO BREAK ANY GLAZING CAUSED LOOSEN SUBSOIL TO A DEPTH OF 4". LOOSEN EARTH ON SIDES OF PLANT POCKET TO BREAK ANY GLAZING CAUSED BY DIGGING. 3. PLACE ROOT BALL IN CENTER OF PLANTING HOLE, PLUMB WITH BOTTOM OF THE HOLE, WITH TREE TRUNK UPRIGHT PLACE ROOT BALL IN CENTER OF PLANTING HOLE, PLUMB WITH BOTTOM OF THE HOLE, WITH TREE TRUNK UPRIGHT AND STRAIGHT. 4. BALLED AND BURLAP TREES: WITHOUT LOOSENING THE ROOT BALL, CUT, PEEL BACK, AND REMOVE AS MUCH OF THE BALLED AND BURLAP TREES: WITHOUT LOOSENING THE ROOT BALL, CUT, PEEL BACK, AND REMOVE AS MUCH OF THE WIRE BASKET AND BURLAP AS POSSIBLE (AT LEAST THE TOP THIRD) IF THE ROOT BALL STARTS TO FALL APART AS YOU TAKE OFF THE WIRE AND BURLAP, BACKFILL THE HOLE WITH ENOUGH SOIL TO STABILIZE IT. THEN CAREFULLY REMOVE WIRE AND BURLAP, AND BACKFILL AS YOU GO TO KEEP THE ROOT BALL INTACT. 5. BACKFILL PLANTING HOLE WITH ORIGINAL SOIL, BREAKING UP LARGE CLODS, AND WORKING IT WITH HANDS OR SHOVEL.  BACKFILL PLANTING HOLE WITH ORIGINAL SOIL, BREAKING UP LARGE CLODS, AND WORKING IT WITH HANDS OR SHOVEL.  WATER THE ROOT BALL AND ENTIRE BACKFILLED AREA. 6. PLACE 4" OF MULCH OVER THE BACK FILLED AREA. PULL MULCH AWAY FROM THE TRUNK SO THAT NONE TOUCHES PLACE 4" OF MULCH OVER THE BACK FILLED AREA. PULL MULCH AWAY FROM THE TRUNK SO THAT NONE TOUCHES THE BARK. 7. STAKE TREE ONLY IF NECESSARY. STAKE WHEN THE ROOT BALL IS UNSTABLE, THE TRUNK IS BENDING, SITES WITH STAKE TREE ONLY IF NECESSARY. STAKE WHEN THE ROOT BALL IS UNSTABLE, THE TRUNK IS BENDING, SITES WITH HEAVY PEDESTRIAN TRAFFIC, OR ON WINDY AND EXPOSED SITES. USE WIDE NYLON, CANVAS STRAPS, OR NYLON STOCKINGS. PLACE MINIMUM OF TWO STAKES, OUTSIDE OF THE ROOT BALL, ON OPPOSITE SIDES OF THE TREE.  REMOVE AFTER 1 YEAR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
X XXXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECIDUOUS TREE INSTALLATION NO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROVIDE SPADE EDGE AROUND MULCH RING, UNLESS TREE IS  IN LANDSCAPE BED WITH EDGING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"X2" WOOD STAKE DRIVEN MIN. 3" INTO SOIL OUTSIDE OF ROOT BALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREVAILING WIND

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIDE NYLON, CANVAS STRAPS, OR NYLON STOCKING WRAPPED AROUND TRUNK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE TRUNK

AutoCAD SHX Text
X XXXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHRUB BED INSTALLATION NO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" MULCH, TAPER TO STEM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. PREPARE PLANTING BEDS TO SIZE AND SHAPE AS INDICATED ON THE PLANS. INSTALL LANDSCAPE EDGING AS PREPARE PLANTING BEDS TO SIZE AND SHAPE AS INDICATED ON THE PLANS. INSTALL LANDSCAPE EDGING AS INDICATED ON THE PLANS.  2. PLACE GRANULAR, PRE-EMERGENT WEED PREVENTER ONTO SOIL SURFACE PRIOR TO PLACING MULCH. PLACE GRANULAR, PRE-EMERGENT WEED PREVENTER ONTO SOIL SURFACE PRIOR TO PLACING MULCH. 3. ALL PLANTS SHALL BE SET PLUMB AND HAVE THE BEST SIDE OF THE PLANT FACING TOWARD THE MAIN ALL PLANTS SHALL BE SET PLUMB AND HAVE THE BEST SIDE OF THE PLANT FACING TOWARD THE MAIN DIRECTION OF VIEW. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE DEAD AND BROKEN BRANCHES PRIOR TO PLANTING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. DIG THE PLANT POCKET A MINIMUM OF 3 TIMES WIDER THAN THE WIDTH OF THE ROOT BALL AND ONLY AS DEEP DIG THE PLANT POCKET A MINIMUM OF 3 TIMES WIDER THAN THE WIDTH OF THE ROOT BALL AND ONLY AS DEEP AS THE ROOT SYSTEM, UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED. 2. LOOSEN SUBSOIL TO A DEPTH OF 4". LOOSEN EARTH ON SIDES OF PLANT POCKET TO BREAK ANY GLAZING CAUSED LOOSEN SUBSOIL TO A DEPTH OF 4". LOOSEN EARTH ON SIDES OF PLANT POCKET TO BREAK ANY GLAZING CAUSED BY DIGGING. 3. PLACE ROOT BALL IN CENTER OF PLANTING HOLE, PLUMB WITH BOTTOM OF THE HOLE, WITH TREE TRUNK UPRIGHT PLACE ROOT BALL IN CENTER OF PLANTING HOLE, PLUMB WITH BOTTOM OF THE HOLE, WITH TREE TRUNK UPRIGHT AND STRAIGHT. 4. BALLED AND BURLAP TREES: WITHOUT LOOSENING THE ROOT BALL, CUT, PEEL BACK, AND REMOVE AS MUCH OF BALLED AND BURLAP TREES: WITHOUT LOOSENING THE ROOT BALL, CUT, PEEL BACK, AND REMOVE AS MUCH OF THE WIRE BASKET AND BURLAP AS POSSIBLE (AT LEAST THE TOP THIRD) IF THE ROOT BALL STARTS TO FALL APART AS YOU TAKE OFF THE WIRE AND BURLAP, BACKFILL THE HOLE WITH ENOUGH SOIL TO STABILIZE IT. THEN CAREFULLY REMOVE WIRE AND BURLAP, AND BACKFILL AS YOU GO TO KEEP THE ROOT BALL INTACT. 5. BACKFILL PLANTING HOLE WITH ORIGINAL SOIL, BREAKING UP LARGE CLODS, AND WORKING IT WITH HANDS OR BACKFILL PLANTING HOLE WITH ORIGINAL SOIL, BREAKING UP LARGE CLODS, AND WORKING IT WITH HANDS OR SHOVEL.  WATER THE ROOT BALL AND ENTIRE BACKFILLED AREA. 6. PLACE 4" OF MULCH OVER THE BACK FILLED AREA. PULL MULCH AWAY FROM THE TRUNK SO THAT NONE TOUCHES PLACE 4" OF MULCH OVER THE BACK FILLED AREA. PULL MULCH AWAY FROM THE TRUNK SO THAT NONE TOUCHES THE BARK. 7. STAKE TREE ONLY IF NECESSARY. STAKE WHEN THE ROOT BALL IS UNSTABLE, THE TRUNK IS BENDING, SITES WITH STAKE TREE ONLY IF NECESSARY. STAKE WHEN THE ROOT BALL IS UNSTABLE, THE TRUNK IS BENDING, SITES WITH HEAVY PEDESTRIAN TRAFFIC, OR ON WINDY AND EXPOSED SITES. USE WIDE NYLON, CANVAS STRAPS, OR NYLON STOCKINGS. PLACE MINIMUM OF TWO STAKES, OUTSIDE OF THE ROOT BALL, ON OPPOSITE SIDES OF THE TREE. REMOVE AFTER 1 YEAR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" MULCH,  COVER ENTIRE  BACKFILLED AREA.  TAPER MULCH  TO TRUNK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOOSEN SUBSOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
X XXXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN TREE INSTALLATION NO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"X2" WOOD STAKE DRIVEN MIN. 3" INTO SOIL OUTSIDE OF ROOT BALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREVAILING WIND

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIDE NYLON, CANVAS STRAPS, OR NYLON STOCKING WRAPPED AROUND TRUNK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE TRUNK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROVIDE SPADE EDGE AROUND MULCH RING, UNLESS TREE IS  IN LANDSCAPE BED WITH EDGING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECIDUOUS TREE (MODERATE BOLD)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN TREE (MODERATE BOLD)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECIDUOUS SHRUB (MEDIUM)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN SHRUB (MEDIUM)

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARDWOOD MULCH (SUPER FINE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL MULCH (SUPER FINE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURF AREA (SUPER FINE)



AP
PR

OV
ED

 B
Y:

DE
SI

GN
ED

 B
Y:

CH
EC

KE
D 

BY
:

- -

-

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:B

EN
DE

R,
 R

EB
EC

CA
  6

/6/
20

23
 1:

13
 P

M
N:

\20
22

\22
02

90
_E

sc
an

ab
a_

CW
SR

F_
PP

_2
02

3\D
ra

wi
ng

s\S
he

ets
\R

-1
02

 LU
DI

NG
TO

N 
ST

 8+
00

 T
O 

16
+0

0.d
wg

 - 
LU

DI
NG

TO
N 

ST
 8+

00
 T

O 
16

+0
0

C2
AE

.S
TA

ND
AR

D.
ST

B

220290

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y

DE
LT

A 
CO

UN
TY

, M
IC

HI
GA

N

09/2022

R-102

----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----
----

LU
DI

NG
TO

N 
ST

 8+
00

 T
O 

16
+0

0

Feet
0 40 80

CI
TY

 O
F 

ES
CA

NA
BA

, M
IC

HI
GA

N
LU

DI
NG

TO
N 

ST
RE

ET
SC

AP
E 

& 
MU

NI
CI

PA
L D

OC
K 

RE
ST

RO
OM

S

W
E 

RE
CY

CL
E

SHEET

REVISIONS

www.c2ae.com

ar
ch

ite
ct

ur
e 

 · 
 e

ng
in

ee
rin

g

REV DESCRIPTION DATE

PROJ. #:

DATE:

BL
AC

K
W

HI
TE

TH
E 

BA
R 

BE
LO

W
 S

HO
W

S 
GR

AY
SC

AL
E 

FR
OM

 W
HI

TE
 T

O 
SO

LID
 B

LA
CK

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
590

AutoCAD SHX Text
589.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
591.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
583.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
589.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
590.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
589.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
591.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
587.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
590.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
592.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
223

AutoCAD SHX Text
230

AutoCAD SHX Text
205

AutoCAD SHX Text
117

AutoCAD SHX Text
109

AutoCAD SHX Text
225

AutoCAD SHX Text
201

AutoCAD SHX Text
209

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
111

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1  " DIA. S.S. GRAB BAR12" DIA. S.S. GRAB BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UTYPICAL BARRIER FREE WATER CLOSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1  " DIA. S.S. GRAB BAR12" DIA. S.S. GRAB BAR

http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
http://www.ketiv.com
AutoCAD SHX Text
~C

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY NAPKIN DISPOSAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOILET PAPER HOLDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
17"-19"

AutoCAD SHX Text
17"-19"

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" (MIN.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" (MIN.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" (MIN.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" (MIN.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
7"-9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7"-9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
~C

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BABY CHANGING STATION IN W.C. STALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
COORDINATE WITH LOCATION OF GRAB BARS

http://www.ArchT.com
http://www.ArchT.com
http://www.ArchT.com
http://www.ArchT.com
http://www.ArchT.com
http://www.ArchT.com
http://www.ArchT.com
http://www.ArchT.com
http://www.ArchT.com
http://www.ArchT.com
http://www.ArchT.com
http://www.ArchT.com
http://www.ArchT.com
http://www.ArchT.com
http://www.ArchT.com
http://www.ArchT.com
AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
11"

AutoCAD SHX Text
11"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6~8" (MAX.) SINK DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARRIER FREE LAVATORY & SINK HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: WATER SUPPLY & DRAIN PIPES BELOW LAVITORIES AND SINKS MUST BE INSULATED OR OTHERWISE CONFIGURED TO PROTECT AGAINST CONTACT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR CONTINUATION SEE SHEET C-101

AutoCAD SHX Text
LUDINGTON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 3RD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 3RD STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 2ND STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOPSOIL, SEED AND MULCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MULCH WITH STRAW OR HYDROMULCH. MULCH MUST BE BOUND WITH A TACTIFIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE TOPSOIL AT 4" DEPTH. TOPSOIL MUST BE SCREENED, FREE OF WEEDS, DEBRIS, AND STONES. TOPSOIL SOURCE MUST BE APPROVED PRIOR TO PLACEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES 1. SEED MIXTURE SHALL BE AS SPECIFIED. TAGS FROM SEED BAGS SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE 3 DAYS PRIOR TO PLACING SEED.  PLACE SEED PER SPECIFICATIONS. 2. A SAMPLE OF THE TOPSOIL SHALL BE PROVIDED TO THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE 3 DAYS PRIOR TO DELIVERING AND PLACING THE TOPSOIL ON SITE. 3. TOPSOIL SHALL BE PLACED WITHIN  " OF TOP OF ANY ADJACENT PAVED SURFACE; PLUS  ", 12" OF TOP OF ANY ADJACENT PAVED SURFACE; PLUS  ", 14", NO MINUS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(6) RESTROOMS, INCLUDING  (3) WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE RESTROOMS

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY CORRIDOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING RESTROOM/LIFT STATION TO BE ABANDONED

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUNICIPAL DOCK  (OUTDOOR EVENT SPACE)



RAP 2.0 Ludington Streetscape and Municipal Dock Restrooms
Estimated Costs by C2AE June 6, 2023 

Item Description Unit Unit Cost Total Project 
Quantities Costs

Mobilization 15% 2,144$          1,267$        4,848$      4,328$        41,670$           
Contingency 10% 1,429$          844$           3,232$      2,886$        27,780$           

2020004 Tree, Rem, 6 inch to 18 inch EA 643.00$    -$              -$            -$          1 643$           1 643$                
2040020 Curb and Gutter, Rem LF 12.34$      72 888$             -$            -$          5 62$             725 8,947$             
2040050 Pavt, Rem Syd 38.52$      83 3,210$          -$            178 6,857$      -$            1367 52,670$           
2040055 Sidewalk, Rem Syd 29.19$      6 162$             -$            -$          -$            56 1,622$             
2040070 Utility Pole, Rem Ea 250.00$    2 500$             -$            -$          -$            20 5,000$             
2050016 Excavation, Earth Cyd 13.07$      -$              -$            -$          156 2,033$        156 2,033$             
2060005 Aggregate Cyd 70.00$      -$              -$            -$          20 1,431$        20 1,431$             
2080024 Erosion Control, Inlet Protection, Sediment Trap Ea 237.00$    2 474$             -$            -$          -$            20 4,740$             
2080036 Erosion Control, Silt Fence Ft 3.54$        -$              -$            -$          200 708$           200 708$                
3020030 Aggregate Base, 12 inch Syd 21.00$      20 420$             -$            100 2,100$      128 2,683$        628 13,183$           
4010795 Culv, Downspout, 12 inch Ft 51.46$      -$              -$            -$          50 2,573$        50 2,573$             
4020030 Sewer, Cl A, 6 inch, Tr Det B Ft 18.30$      -$              -$            -$          100 1,830$        100 1,830$             
4021201 Sewer Tap, 6 inch Ea 200.00$    -$              -$            -$          1 200$           1 200$                
4040073 Underdrain, Subgrade, 6 inch Ft 12.00$      -$              -$            -$          50 600$           50 600$                
4040093 Underdrain Outlet, 6 inch Ft 20.19$      -$              -$            -$          50 1,010$        50 1,010$             
5050015 Seal, Fog Syd 3.97$        -$              1944 7,719$        -$          -$            2088 8,291$             
8030046 Sidewalk, Conc, 6 inch Sft 6.56$        100 656$             -$            35 230$         460 3,018$        1565 10,266$           
8020015 Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det B1 Ft 39.00$      90 3,510$          -$            450 17,550$    -$            2250 87,750$           
8032002 Curb Ramp, Conc, 6 inch Sft 17.55$      25 439$             -$            -$          -$            250 4,388$             
8110110 Pavt Mrkg, Polyurea, 12 inch, Crosswalk Ft 4.25$        -$              160 680$           -$          -$            172 730$                
8110125 Pavt Mrkg, Regular Dry, 4 inch, White Ft 0.13$        -$              350 46$             -$          -$            376 49$                  
8160025 Mulch Syd 1.00$        -$              -$            178 178$         -$            533 533$                
8160064 Topsoil Surface, Furn, 6 inch Syd 10.00$      11 111$             -$            178 1,778$      -$            644 6,444$             
8162001 Slope Restoration, Non-Freeway, Type A Syd 5.76$        -$              -$            -$          119 686$           119 686$                
8182053 Conduit, DB, 2, 3 inch Ft 26.40$      -$              -$            -$          100 2,640$        100 2,640$             
8182338 Metered Serv Ea 1,845.00$ -$              -$            -$          1 1,845$        1 1,845$             
8190285 Light Std Shaft, 30 foot or less Ea 2,131.22$ 1 2,131$          -$            1 2,131$      3 6,394$        16 34,100$           
8237050 _ Water Service Box Ea 500.00$    -$              -$            -$          1 500$           1 500$                
8507050 _Bike Rack Ea 1,039.11$ 1 1,039$          -$            -$          -$            10 10,391$           
8507050 _Tree Ea 500.00$    1 500$             -$            2 1,000$      -$            16 8,000$             
8507050 _Shrub Ea 250.00$    1 250$             -$            2 500$         -$            16 4,000$             

_Masonry and Laminate Building Sft 200.00$    -$            1050 210,000$    1050 210,000$         
Administration and Legal Fees 17% 2,429$          1,436$        5,495$      4,905$        47,226$           
Engineering Fees 20% 2,858$          1,689$        6,465$      5,771$        55,560$           
Total Capital Costs 23,151$        13,681$      52,363$    256,745$    660,039$         

10 231,512$      1.074 14,693$      3 157,089$  1Project count:

Curb Modifications Street Markings Medians Restrooms
(per corner) (per 1000 ft) (per block) (6 RR, 25'x42')



Application  

RAP 2.0 Application  
  

Project Name:    Ludington Streetscape and Municipal Event 

Center 

Project Street Address:  City/Twp./Village:  Zip Code:  County:  

 200 Ludington St Escanaba 49829 Delta 

Applicant Entity Legal Name:  Employer Identification Number (EIN):  

City of Escanaba    

Applicant Address:  City/Twp./Village:  Zip Code:  County:  

410 Ludington St  Escanaba 49829 Delta 

  

Program Overview   

  

The Revitalization and Placemaking Program (RAP) 2.0 is an incentive program that will proactively 
deploy $100 million in funding to address the COVID-19 impacts in Michigan communities through to 

invest in projects that enable population and tax revenue growth through rehabilitation of vacant and 

blighted buildings and historic structures, rehabilitation and development of vacant properties, and 

development of permanent place-based infrastructure associated with social zones and traditional 

downtowns, outdoor dining, and place-based public spaces. Administered by the Michigan Economic 

Development Corporation (MEDC), this tool provides access to real estate development gap financing in 

the form of grants between $500 thousand and $5 million per project for real estate rehabilitation and 

development, grants between $250 thousand and $1 million for public space place-based infrastructure 

per project, and grants of up to $20 million to local or regional partners who develop a subgrant 

program.  

  

There are three categories of awards within this application:  

  

1. Real estate rehabilitation awards are to be applied to vacant, underutilized, blighted, or historic 

buildings.  

2. Public space place-based infrastructure awards for a single project.  

3. Coordinated subgrant awards for organizations who intend to implement a coordinated 

regranting program to support more than one real estate rehabilitation and/or public space 

placebased project within their region or community.   

  

Each applicant should apply for only one award category. Each category is outlined in the Revitalization 

& Placemaking 2.0 Program Guidelines. All projects in each category will be scored against other 
projects within their region.  

  



To help ensure broad geographic distribution across all Michigan regions and in both rural and urban 
communities, less responsive proposals may be prioritized in some instances so long as the proposal 

meets programmatic requirements.   

  

Award amounts may be adjusted to a lesser amount than what is requested based on project 

underwriting, when necessary to reach regional allocation amounts or as determined appropriate by the 

MSF prior to award approval.   

  

Applications or individual projects may be disqualified for any of the following reasons:  

  

• Failure to align with RAP Program Guidelines.  

• Failure to demonstrate the development team’s capacity to successfully implement the project.  

• Failure to show that the project(s) can be completed before September 30, 2027  

• Insufficient evidence that the proposed project with the requested award is financially viable  

• Failure to provide all required attachments  

• Projects must be related and reasonably proportional to the negative impact that were 

experienced by those who will benefit from the project. Uses of funds that bear no relation or 
are grossly disproportionate to the negative impacts experienced will be disqualified.   

• Projects without a letter or resolution showing support for the RAP2 application from the 

highest official within the local unit of government in which they are located.  

  

  
  
 

  
Public Space Place-Based Infrastructure Project   

  
grant between $250,000 and $1,000,000  

  

Background Information: 18 points possible  

  

1) Describe the proposed project. 4 points for complete description, 0 points otherwise  

Proposed project includes three blocks of improved walkable streetscape with traffic-slowing 

curb lines, densified angle parking, green infrastructure medians, and accessible public 

restrooms for the event space at the City of Escanaba Municipal Dock in Ludington Park.  

  

2) Provide a map with your application that clearly identifies where the improvements will be 

made and the public spaces that are around the proposed investment. 4 points if map has clear 

boundaries of project area and outlines other public spaces near the proposed project, 0 points 

otherwise  

Map shows Municipal Dock, existing restroom and picnic area, and connecting streets.  

  

3) What is the amount of the grant that you are seeking from this program and what is the total 

cost of your proposed project? 2 points for complete answer, 0 points otherwise  



$330,000 is requested from RAP 2.0; total project costs are expected to be $660,000. 

4) Required attachment checklist: Local support recommendation letter, financial proforma, 

preliminary or final design documents, before photos, aerial photo, construction cost estimates, 

evidence of funding commitments, project map. 8 points for all documents, 4 points for 

proforma/local support letter/cost estimates/evidence of available funding commitments, 0 

points for anything besides that  
See attachments.  

  

Project Readiness and Programmatic Considerations: 82 points possible.  

  

1) Describe the status of the project including status of construction drawings, cost estimates? 3 

points for final designs and contractor-provided construction cost estimates, 2 points for 

preliminary designs and preliminary cost estimates, zero points otherwise.  

Preliminary design and cost estimated have been created by working group (see attachments). 

Costs for final engineering plans and specifications are included in project budget.  

  

2) Describe any property acquisition or easements that are necessary for this project to move 

forward? 5 points if no acquisition or easements are necessary or if all necessary control has 

been secured, 2 points if control or easements are pending, zero points otherwise.   

No acquisitions or easements are necessary; City currently owns and manages park property.  

  

3) Provide and describe how the project will benefit nearby businesses within a downtown or key 

commercial corridor and attach any support letter(s) from adjacent or nearby businesses or 

property owners? 8 points total: 2 points for each relevant letter of support  

Project will enhance outdoor recreation and event space, serving as a gateway to the largest 

lakeshore park and the historic downtown. Letters of support from adjacent hotel and 

residential developers will be included.   

  

4) Please explain the project schedule and how the projects will be completed before September 
30, 2027, as funds need to be expended by that date. 4 points for a well-articulated schedule 

that identifies dates and where financing commitments align.  

The project will be designed in fall 2023 and bid in spring 2024, with streetscape construction to 

occur in tandem with 2024 collection system improvements and public restroom to occur in the 

following year, summer 2025.  

  

5) Explain the applicant’s project team’s level of similar project-specific experience. 8 points for 

two projects completed, 4 points for one project completed and zero points for no relevant 

examples.  

The City of Escanaba has managed many multi-phased, multi-year, multi-million dollar projects 

in recent years through State Revolving Fund programs, MEDC community block grants and self-

funded capital improvement projects.  

  

6) Identify and provide evidence for other sources of funds for this project, including the type and 

amount of local financial support received for this project. 10 points for non-RAP funds secured 



with 1+ source other than applicant or MSF award, 5 points for non-RAP funds secured but only 
source of funds is applicant.  

Clean Water State Revolving Funds and Drinking Water State Revolving Funds will be leveraged 

within this project area, although the final funding commitment is not resolved. Downtown 

Development Authority will provide funds for the streetscape improvements and the City 

Department of Public Works will provide funding for the restrooms. 

 

7) How has the use of public space in the area changed during the pandemic and how will this 
project have a positive long-term impact on the community? Please address how it will grow the 

tax base, activate vacant or underutilized space, and contribute to the resiliency of the  

community? 12 points possible: 4 if activating vacant or underutilized space, 4 if the project will 

contribute to the success of businesses located within ¼ mile, 4 pts if the project includes 

innovative low-impact or green construction practices  

The pandemic has increased the popularity and need for outdoor event spaces and the desire 

for contained, accessible public restrooms. Improved walkability and access will increase tourist 

traffic in the downtown area. Green infrastructure will increase infiltration (reducing flood risk), 

slow traffic, and beautify the streetscape.  

  

8) Describe how your project contributes to the community’s vision and priorities as laid out in the 

local master plan, capital improvements plan and/or economic development strategy or other 

locally adopted plan that addresses COVID response and community resiliency. 12 points 

possible: 4 pts for each plan that references a need being addressed through this project up to 

12 pts, or 12 pts for a locally adopted plan that included multiple opportunities for public input 

and specifically identifies this project as a priority  

Delta County’s master plan (2016) has included north shore development as a top priority. The 

capital improvements plan has included replacement of deteriorated public restrooms, 

supported by the Recreation Department and the Water/Wastewater Department (with 

discontinuation of pump station). New public facility will have added privacy to meet COVID 

protocols and universal design. The improved walkability and outdoor use space will increase 

resiliency at relatively low cost.  

  

9) How will this project be maintained long-term? Identify maintenance plan, funding, the 

organization that will be responsible, and elaborate on any other anticipated tasks associated 
with the maintenance of the final product. 8 points for a maintenance budget with seasonal 

maintenance tasks and source of funding for maintenance identified, 0 points otherwise.  

Ludington Street and Municipal Dock are currently maintained by the Department of Public 
Works and will continue to be included in regular operations and maintenance for 

groundskeeping.  

  

10) How will this public space be programmed for use by businesses, for recreation, and accessibility 
for all? Identify how the space will be used, by whom, and how Universal Design will be 

incorporated throughout the entire project. 10 points for a plan with at least one seasonal 

activity, Universal Design throughout the project, and funding. 5 points for less active use, and 
50%-75% of the project incorporating Universal Design.   

The Downtown Development Authority and Recreation Department will manage reservations 



for the Municipal Dock in the same manner that they maintain other public-use areas, allowing 
half-day or day-long rentals and coordinating use with public safety for larger events.  

  

Tie Breaker Questions: These responses will not be scored but will be used to evaluate equally scored 

Public Space Place-Based Project applications against one another and to determine which combination 

of top scoring applications from all categories most effectively accomplish RAP program goals.  

  

1) Are the project benefits broad reaching? In other words, the project qualifies because it is 

addressing the impacts of COVID-19 on a specific group, but will the overall benefits of the 

project impact multiple groups within your community? Please provide up to five letters of 

support that are not also included in number 3) above.  
The project will benefit the entire City community and guests, with improved accessibility and 

safety for users of any age. The improved facilities will support outdoor recreation, special 

events, and community health and comfort.  

  

2) Please provide a summary response (no more than 500 words total) to the following questions.  

  

a. How does the project support investments that will create the environment necessary 

to attract and retain talent, add new housing options, enable business creation and 
attraction, and provide resources for Michigan citizens and communities.  

The project will attract new residents and retain residents with improved quality of life. 
There will be new opportunities for business events, pop-up businesses, and mobile 

food and retail services.   

  

b. How does the project help local governments avoid budget crises, retain current 

residents, and enhance downtown vitality?   

New restrooms will have less maintenance than existing, deteriorated building. The 

project will provide free bathrooms for tourists and residents in the public areas and 

support foot-traffic. Improved walkability through safer road crossings, improved 

parking, and protective and beautiful vegetation enhances downtown vitality. 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Project Map 

2. Before Photos 

3. Aerial Photo 

4. Preliminary or Final design documents 

5. Construction Cost Estimate 

6. Draft Maintenance Plan 

7. Financial Proforma 

8. Local support recommendation letters  

a. Local Government  

b. Local Business  

c. Economic Development Authority 

9. Evidence of Funding Commitments 








	06.15.2023 - City Council Mtg - Regular
	cm05.18.2023
	cm05.25.2023 special
	cm06.05.2023 special
	PH-1
	MX-M363N_20230605_152037
	PH-1
	2223FinalAmendmentNarrative
	PH-1


	PH-2
	PH-2
	PH-2
	Summary_LeverEdge
	Loan Application_Signed
	Loan Application_Carlson_Signed
	Loan Application_Noel_Signed


	23-15 CDBG Application

	NB-1
	MX-M363N_20230608_102048
	NB-1
	23-13 Escanaba Resolution to Withdraw from GLU


	NB-2
	MX-M363N_20230608_102340
	NB-2

	NB-3
	MX-M363N_20230608_102817
	NB-3

	NB-4
	MX-M363N_20230608_103240
	NB-4
	Road Close


	NB-5
	NB-5
	NB-5
	Bonifas Art Center services 2023-24

	MX-M363N_20230608_105906

	NB-6
	MX-M363N_20230608_110336
	NB-6
	NB-6
	RESOLUTION 23


	NB-7
	MX-M363N_20230608_111057
	NB-7

	NB-8
	MX-M363N_20230608_111109

	NB-9
	NB-9
	MX-M363N_20230609_092546

	NB-10
	NB-11
	MX-M363N_20230608_112635
	Bid Tab - 2023
	Fabick Bid - 2023

	NB-12
	MX-M363N_20230608_142410
	NB-12
	1_ProjectMap
	2_BeforePhotos
	4_PlansPrelim
	Sheets and Views
	R-102 LUDINGTON ST 8+00 TO 16+00-G-001 COVER SHEET
	Ludington Street

	R-102 LUDINGTON ST 8+00 TO 16+00-LUDINGTON ST 0+00 TO 8+00
	Ludington Street

	R-102 LUDINGTON ST 8+00 TO 16+00-LUDINGTON ST 8+00 TO 16+00
	Ludington Street



	5_ConstructionCostsPrelim
	rap-2.0-application_Escanaba


	NB-13
	NB-14
	NB-14
	SEPSD Copie23060813430




